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Dear Shareholders, Ladies and Gentlemen!

| would like to welcome and extend my greetings to all
attending this 32nd annual general meeting of National
Life Insurance Company Limited, on my personal behalf
and on behalf of the board of directors of the company. It is
my pleasure and honour to present the 32" Annual Reports
in this august general meeting for your considerations.

On this occasion, we are pleased to note that Nepalese life
insurance sector has made considerable progress during
the fiscal year 2075/076 (2018/2019 AD) and insurance
penetration in the country has also increased substantially.
National Life also has accordingly made good progress and
total first insurance premium of Rs. 232.38 crores of the
previous year of the company has increased by 29.96 % to
Rs. 302.01 crore and the total insurance premium of the
Company has reached from Rs. 644.76 crore to Rs. 805.05
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crore in the review period. The company has sold 52,416
number of new individual life insurance policies in the FY.
2075/076 (2018/2019 AD). In addition to this, the company
has made significant progress in the underwriting of Group
Life and Micro Term insurance policies during the review
period. The company is presently servicing 5,25,522 number
of insurance policies. Similarly, the growth of the life fund of
the company has been satisfactory, which has increased by
25% percent from Rs. 2147.24 crores to Rs. 2692.35 crore and
the paid up capital of the company has exceeded Rs. 3 billion
whereas the prescribed minimum capital by the regulatory
body Insurance Board for a life insurance company is only
Rs. 2 billion. In the same way, the Reserve and Fund has
exceeded Rs.55 crores and the Catastrophe Reserve Fund
has reached Rs. 21.84 crores during the review period.

The total investment of the company has increased by
27.94%, from the amount of Rs. 2,095.44 crores last year
to Rs. 2,680.85 crores at the end of review period. Even
though there is lack of long term investment instrument in
the market to match long term liability of a life insurance
company, National Life has been successful in investing
76.71% of total investment in the long term instrument.
This has been a matter of great satisfaction and should help
stabilize the interest income of the company in the future. In
the fiscal year 2075/076 BS (2018/2019 AD), the investment
income of the company has increased by 32 percent from
Rs. 176 crore to Rs. 232.91 crore. Similarly, the annual average
rate of return of the total investment of the company has
reached to 11.53 percent which is very satisfactory and
should benefit all the stakeholders. The entire amount of the
fund has beeninvested in high yielding secured instruments,
as per the directives issued by the Insurance Board.

The company has always been at the forefront tointroduce
internationally popular insurance policies in the Nepalese
life insurance sector. In this context, the company has
introduced two new endowment policies - Amrit Shree
Anticipated and Sanjeevani Amrit Endowment, with the
approval of the Insurance Board in the review period.
In view of the growing demand of the market, a Critical



l T ATSh FrATT HHHT (ATHdg

aiftis ufcddgol 2009/008

q0

TR (Critical lliness Rider) HFIHIT T4 9 Y=l=THT
FTTHT T | AT el ATH@SATE HPITh] SAaHIHT
I TaT AT BT faeaed & |

FEIHIST ATRAT QT fRqTRebT AT AT Fvatlel
famarar fagw suer e feueRr 3 | quier auEr
frame e o fomm afafqere W Far T3t
oM@l @ied TR (TRl T, STHaE FFIAD
STRET TN &, T G | AR fewer 9f smar
oo [aeaRdr e 9 A 9216 B |
T T AT AT AT A6l JATETHT
FFIAC (999 98 Wl G T 3Rs Fl qldH
AT TR \9\9¥3 FATATE ATAehdl diferd Y&
TMRUHT T | ATHRAETHT FTSTATHE  ATATAROTehT
fostr T FRer qwg gwEEEr @eel/fawelr
URTeTFESATe AHA TS TRTLT Y& T+ Hriers
f=aea fasuat B | FFIT Hatderl Ioeas FanT
T H IET, qAT RN TR T T QAT
AT T.3%5,5908,3%9/- FA TET AWM TKH
3 |

FFIAID] AT R0, /0% [ STHTET HATFAAE
%922 ¥ PRI ATRTAT AIRTHT G | T T FTATR
Fled ST HUHT AHCEEHT Gid el Uk
favger AME T AQRTH B | TS ANHAATS I
We gfakaw gy 9T AAAIH TERIHE
AT AT 3 | RaTel T G 5 g8 e ey
e ATH G T AfeT Web Based Comprehensive
Integrated Software E{Ui Tl BT ‘Tﬁ'@ <,
SEae AT AT G FRIBRATARSAS I=
T AT V&I 9 9T TUH G |

AT . R0\% / 099 BT AfedH A/ TR AR faged
WWWWCOVHD?W
AT HEGIIHAT AGT U4 S@UR F | 9w T
Uk ATHTCATS (&cTIEd T AUATAT HEIwTr

lliness Rider has also been introduced. We believe that
these allnew insurance policies will contribute significantly
in the business growth of the company.

The company has paid special attention for the extension
of the branch and agency networks, with a view to expand
business throughout the country. The company has received
approval from the Regulatory Authority for opening
twenty five new branches during the review period, taking
the total number of branches to 99 and the company is
making efforts to increase it even further. Similarly, it has
been the company's constant endeavor to produce quality
professional agents and accordingly conducted 398 Nos.
of agency training and granted training to 7743 persons.
National / International experts have been invited from
time to time to provide professional training so as to create
competitive environments for the agency networks. During
the review period the company has made a payment of Rs.
2,68,87,07,297/- as death claim, anticipated maturity claim
and surrender value paid, and for this purpose maximum use
of technology is made.

A profit of Rs. 19.94 crores has been transferred in the
fiscal year 2075/076 BS (2018/2019 AD) as per Actuarial
Valuation and the bonus rate to the policyholders has been
increased by one point per thousand in all the policies
issued with profit. We believe this will have positive impact
in the business growth of the company. The company has
always been adequately investing on technology and
at present a fully Web Based Comprehensive Integrated
Software has been implemented. This has enabled the
company to provide comprehensive services to all the
insured and other stakeholders.

The spread of Covid-19 pandemic globally during the last
quarters of FY.2076/077 (2019/20) has the potentiality of
adversely affecting life insurance business, specially because
it will deter liaison / meetings of the agents with prospective
customers. The company has taken necessary possible
steps including encouraging digital means to mitigate
such pandemic impacts in the business, and because of
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these efforts, and also because of hard works of our agency
networks, the business growth during F.Y.2077/78 till date
has been encouraging. Furthermore, it should not be out of
context to mention that the regulatory authority Insurance
Board has implemented the concepts of a common pool
for Foreign Employment Term Insurance where by a specific
percentage as fixed by Insurance Board is allocated to the
participating pool members, with effect from 15 Jan 2019.

It is a matter of great pleasure for us to inform you that
the company has recommended to this general meeting
the distribution of 10 (Ten) percent bonus share on the
existing paid up capital of Rs. 3,08,26,26,548/- along
with a cash dividend of Rs. 1,62,24,351/- for the purpose
of income tax on bonus share , from the profit of the
review period. We sincerely hope that this proposal will be
approved in this general meeting.

| take this opportunity to thank and show gratitude to
Government of Nepal, Ministry of Finance, Insurance
Board (Beema Samiti), Office of the Company Registrar,
Nepal Securities Board, Nepal Stock Exchange, C.D.S.
Clearing and other governmental departments for
their support and cooperation. | would also like to
thank the members of the board of directors for their
continuous support and suggestions in the operation
of the Company. On this occasion, | would further like to
appreciate the hard work, diligence and commitment of
the management team, employees and agency networks
of the Company. | would also like to place on record my
gratitude for the support and trust we received from the
customers, shareholders and all the stakeholders of this
company for their trust and support.

Thankyouforyour participation and profound suggestions.

Prema Rajya Laxmi Singh
Chairperson
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DIRECTOR'S REPORT FORTHE F.Y. 2075/76 PRESENTED BY CHAIRPERSON
MRS. PREMA RAJYA LAXMI SINGH ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, IN
32"° ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF NATIONAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LTD.
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Respected Shareholders,

| would like to heartily welcome and greet you on my
personal behalf and on behalf of the board of directors,
all the shareholders, observing representatives of various
regulatory authorities, auditors and officials of the
company attending this 32nd annual general meeting of

the National Life Insurance Company Limited.

We are pleased to present the audited Balancesheet,
Profit Loss Accounts and Annual Reports of the fiscal
year 2075/076 BS (2018/2019 AD) in this meeting. We
are hopeful that these financial statements pertaining
to Fiscal Year 2018/19, including details as mandated
by Section 109 of the Company's Act 2063 shall be duly
approved by this august gathering after due deliberations.

1. Overview of Past Year's Performance :

The company had collected a gross insurance premium
of Rs.6,44,76,35,019/- in Fiscal Year 2074-075 which
during year under review increased by 24.86 percent to
total of Rs.8,05,05,23,540/-. During the review period,
an additional amount of Rs.5,45,11,15,138/- has been
transferred to Life Insurance Fund from the operation of
current year, increasing life insurance fund by 25 percent
now totaling to Rs. 26,92,35,84,396/- at the end of the
year. Similarly the total investment amount has been
increased by 27.94 percent reaching Rs. 26,80,85,10,691/-

at the end of review period.
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Current Year Previous Year

Life Insurance Premium (2075/076 BS) (2074/075 BS
(2018/2019 AD) (2017/2018 AD)

First Insurance Premium 3,020,115,859 2,323,803,522
Renewal Insurance Premium 5,030,407,681 4,123,831,497
8,050,523,540 6,447,635,019

Deduction: Re-insurance premium (189,841,341) (268,454,262)
Net Premium 7,860,682,200 6,179,180,757
Re-insurance Commission 34,573,123 27,077,582
Late Fee 56,199,450 33,930,806
Investment Income 2,443,372,530 1,822,226,097
Total Income (A) 10,394,827,303 8,062,415,242
Claim Payment (Net) 2,843,142,235 2,074,853,976
Agent Commission Payment 840,424,662 608,796,242
Service Charge to the Insurance Board 78,606,822 61,791,808
Medical fee 7,495,179 5,170,336
Management Expenses 648,855,369 544,597,158
Enplymencem e WG| 18152
Total Expenses (B) 4,526,940,338 3,476,367,242
Saving (A-B) 5,867,886,465 4,586,048,000
Provision for income tax (217,291,729) (156,932,999)
Net Saving 5,650,594,736 4,429,115,001
Ezzﬁz:fproﬁt from the actuary's (199,479,599) (250,058.981)
I"n"s:f:":'(ﬂz’::‘fe"e" toLife SAS1115138 | 4179,056,020

2. Impact of the National and International

Events, in the Business of the Company:

The International Monetary Fund has projected an

increase of 3.2 percent growth in world economy,

compared to 3.6 percent growth in 2018.

In the fiscal year 2075/076 BS (2018/2019 AD) Gross

Domestic Product Growth Rate was a remarkable 7.1%.

This has been possible mainly due to increment in

agricultural production, accessibility in energy supply,

expansion of industrial production and increment of the

arrival of tourist in to the country.

The annual gross inflation rate pointwise has been 5.4%
in 2076 Asar (June/July2019) whereas in 2075 Asar
(June/July 2018) such rate stood at 2.1%. During the

q9
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fiscal Year 2075/076 (2018/ 2019) the inflow of remittance
has increased by 16.5% to Rs 879 Billion 27 Crores in total.
In the fiscal year 2075/076 (2018/ 2019) the balance of
payment showed a deficit of Rs. 67 Billion 40 Crore whereas
in the earlier year it was in surplus by Rs. 96 Crores. The total
foreign exchange reserve was Rs. 1,102 Billion 59 Crores in
2075 Asar (June/July2018) that stood at Rs.1038 Billion 92
Crores in 2076 Asar (June/July2019).

Because of the spread of Corona Virus (COVID-19) in the
closing months of the fiscal year 2076/077 (2019/2020)
throughout the world, and the country wide lock-down,
the overall economy of the nation witnessed adverse effect.
The life insurance business could not remain isolated by
this. However, the company is making all efforts to mitigate
the effects of this problem by introduction of digital and
other means. The difficulties created by Covid-19 situations
has resulted in the decline of loan expansion by Banks and
Financial institutions, and as a result interest rate on the
Fixed Deposits granted by Banks have been substantially
reduced, thereby considerably affecting income sources of

all life insurance companies.

3. Achievement in the Current Fiscal Year and
Work Plans for coming period :

Durng the fiscal year 2076/077 BS (2019/2020 AD) the
company collected a total insurance premium of Rs. 924.93
crore which is 15.23 percent higher than that of the fiscal
year 2075/076 BS (2018/2019 AD).

A total insurance premium of Rs. 446.58 crore has been
collected in first five months of of the fiscal year 2077/078
BS (2020/2021 AD) upto Mangsir end (15th December).
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There has been satisfactory increase in the Life Insurance
Fund mainly due to increase in Life Insurance Premium and

Investment Income in the Fiscal Years 2075/76 and 2076/77.

The company has achieved good result in the Actuarial
Valuation in the review year, and, as a result, the rate of
bonus to be provided to the insured has been further
increased as mentioned under. We believe that this will have

a positive impact in the business growth of the company.

2075/076 BS (2018/2019 AD)

Product Term (Vrs) (per thousand of Sum Insured)
5t014 64
151019 64
Endowment 201025 6
26 or above 85
. 5t014 63
Anticipated 151019 o
Endowment 201025 64

Training and Career Development of the Agents

It is indispensable for any life insurance company to have
quality professional agents for the efficient marketing of
the company. In view of this, the company has been paying
special attention for the training and career development
of the agency network during the year of review, and
accordingly provided agency training to 7,743 number
of agents by conducting a total 398 trainings in the fiscal
year 2075/076 BS (2018/2019 AD) and has produced 3,871
new skilled agents. The practise of high level skill training
to the agents has been continued and the orientation
trainings have also been made from time to time by
inviting expert national/foreign trainers. Moreover, the
company has been holding competitive schemes from

time to time honoring and encouraging successful agents.

1?
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Corporate Social Responsibility

As in the past years, the company has provided financial
assistance to the several social institutions working
specifically in the field of health, women and children
under Corporate Social Responsibility heading. In the
review period, the company extended special financial
assistance to organize special comprehensive health camp
in the far west in which more than 2500 patients of the area

have benefited.

Payment of Claim

The company has prepared and implemented necessary
Guidelines so as to simplify and expedite the claim
settlement process and delegated authority tothe branches,
and also maximum use of technology is being made for
this purpose. The company has paid a total number of 895
death claims in the review period. The company has paid Rs.
2,68,87,07,297 as death claim, anticipated maturity claim,
surrender etc successfully discharging its responsibility in

claim payments.

Information Technology

The company has been making substantial investment
in the information technology sector and has now
implemented a Web based Extensive Integrated Software
System. We believe that, it will bring comprehensive quality
to the services that is being extended by the company,
with positive impact in the business. The company will
continuously invest in the coming days to upgrade the

information technology services as before.

New Insurance Products

The company has always been at the forefront in its attempt
to introduce new timely and useful insurance plans in the
Nepalese insurance sector. In this context, the company

has during review period introduced now very popular two



AR (ATSEA) Fdfgeh T Fivstaadl d¥qd qrardew
AT T Ftafaare fEwa g =T s g |
A @RS TARHT AcATF TEEUH G | T T
AiHET aUHT T A HTET AT AT 3 AT IR
AT (Critical lliness Rider) THA FAATHT ATSUHI
B | A o SHGEEATE FEIHT HTATT FTTTAT
Tl AT I TR, |

afqerar omEr Ieer fawr, sfYeRar gesTTerdr
g9 AT, FAGHT T Ta R Qrael 99 1
FISTATES AN T Al AT TS, |

¥, FEAE ARTE AT AFEE T

THTETT AT BT ATRAT ol ARIBRATATEEHT
g ¥ wEdaE e FAH TR g |
URERTAT ¥ AGQIaehare HATLRHT I AT
& FEEas BFABl AET T T GHAATRT
T af Tk WierH g favare e e
B | FEAS H G AT G TG FIAE
qAAT T TR B |

Y. T QAT TS 8XHT T |l Bl HR ¢
3q oAf ATftier WEARY AT G9=Td FEIHIR AR
StsfARr Y FE A 9

% FRIARATE IR I &I FXET

FFIAIH] FRARATS T I Ga & qTAdes T4

PR & A |

F) AR Ags, Hifge Tar fafag  Aifdes
aRaaAare g qa FTad SEHeS |

q) w1 fenRfaar sfew sreaiaes 9fg a7 |

) ATHT SFATIPT AR HAGR TG | Aobedoh
TN &Rl FIaaT |

o) AT AT A0 UIHT SGURT qReAdTR
FHET T A1 aTe faeia Al = 33 9ae T |

ﬁsmmsﬂaﬁwmﬁr%i

aifti ufdager 2009/0u8

endowment insurance plans - Amrit Shree Anticipated
Endowment and Sanjeevani Amrit Endowment, with
approval from the Insurance Board. Similarly, Micro
Term Insurance plan and Critical Iliness rider have also
been introduced in the review year. These new insurance
products have contributed hugely in the promotion of

business growth of the Company.

The Company will continue its policy of extension of
branch network, continuous investment in technology and

introduction of new insurance products in the future as well.

4. Industrial Relations of the Company

The company has maintained meaningful and coordial
relations with all its stakeholders, based on transparency
and professionalism. Further, the company has complied

with Labour and all other related laws.

5. Changes in the Board of Director and its
Reason for the Change:
There has been no changes in the Board of Directors of the

company since the last Annual General Meeting.

6. Key factors affecting business:

The key factors affecting the company's business have

been summarised below.

a. Theassociated risks due to changes in Government
Financial, Monetary and Economic policies.

b.  Ahighinflation rate.

¢. Lack of instruments for the long term investment.
Limited alternative investment opportunities.

d. Theliquidity problem appearingin the economy from
time to time and the unstable interest rate caused by
it. As a result of Covid-19 the loan sanction of the bank
and financial company has been limited, resulting

in the decreasing interest rate of fixed deposit. This
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could cause decline in the income source for insurance
companies in the coming days.

e. Increasing unhealthy practices in the insurance
business.

f.  Possible natural calamities.

The company has taken necessary steps and developed
plans where possible with a view to minimize their adverse

effects on business growth.

7. The Response of the Board of Directors on
the Qualifications, if any, in the Audit Report:
The financial statements of the company have been
prepared in the format and policy as prescribed by the
Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) and Regulatory
Authority Insurance Board (Beema Samiti). We are pleased to

note that there are no qualifications in the audit report.

8. Proposed Amount for Dividend Distribution:

It is a matter of great pleasure for us to announce that the
Board of Directors of the company has recommended
to this general meeting for the distribution of 10 (Ten)
percent bonus share on the existing paid up capital of Rs.
3,08,26,26,548, and a cash dividend of Rs. 1,62,24,351 for
the purpose of tax on bonus share, from the profit of the year

which we firmly hope will be approved by this meeting.

9. Details of shares forfeited: None

10. Business Progress of the Company and its
Subsidiary Company in the Fiscal Year, main
Transactions and any important changes seen in the
Transaction of the Company during that time period:
The financial statement for the fiscal year 2075/076 BS
(2018/2019 AD) of the company is attached herewith.
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The business of the subsidiary company of this company,
M/s N.L.G. Insurance company is satisfactory. There is
satisfactory growth in the business of the company and no

major changes have taken place during the review period.

11.Information provided by the Company's Primary

Shareholder to the Company: None

12. If any information has been provided regarding
any personalinterest of any of the company’s directors
or their close relatives in any contractual agreements

of the company during the past financial year: None

13. If the company has repurchased its own shares as
such, the reason for such repurchase, the number of
such shares, the face value and the amount paid by

the company for repurchasing such shares: None

14. Whether an Internal Control System is in place
or not, and brief details if in place:

The board of directors of the company has been effectively
implementing the internal control system by forming
the audit committee and other committees as per the
Corporate Governance Directive issued by the Insurance
Board (Beema Samiti), Companies Act, 2063 BS (2006
AD) and other existing provisions. In addition to this, the
internal control system has been made effective by hiring
and consulting external experts as required. A compliance
officer has been appointed to ensure the works have been
carried out as per the existing provisions and the internal
and external rules and bylaws have been complied with.
The company has prepared and implemented the different
essential directives for this purpose. The use of technology
has hugely supported the internal control system. The
company has an independent internal audit department

that has been regularly submitting its report after carrying

B¢
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up its own extensive audit works. This has helped to further

strengthen the internal control system of the company.

15. Details of the Total Management Expenses of
the Past Fiscal Year:
The details of the total management expenses of the

previous fiscal year are as follows:

[T eap——— F.Y.2075/076 BS | F.Y.2074/075 BS

(2018/2019 AD) | (2017/2018 AD)
Staff expenses 20,58,80,024 20,70,04,639
Agency related other expenses 36,32,02,178 24,90,68,235
Other offices related expenses 15,18,68,208 14,90,35,079
Total Management Expenses 72,09,50,410 60,51,07,953

The staff expenses and other agency expenses have been
the major expenses of the company. The other agency

expenses have increased due to increase in the business.

The management expenses of the company are balanced
and consistent. Its details have been included in the

Schedule- 7 of financial statement.

16. Outstanding amount to be received by the
company from the Directors, Chief Executive Officer,

Basic Shareholders: None.

17. Details of the Members of the Audit Committee,
the remuneration, allowance and facilities provided
to them, details of the works and the suggestions
givenby Audit Committee, if any:

During the review period, the following were the members

of the board in the audit committee.

R) T HELAR YT A (H=HAh)
3) T WAl &S (ATRIF @l 96T T E) a3

qJ

1) Mr. Kuldeep Sharan Singh (Director)
2) Mr. Maheshwor Prakash Shrestha (Director)

Co-ordinator

Member

qfder a9 09 /0% H ST & d&HHl o@l
TRIETTT TR TIATE €.9,50,000 /- T3 AT

3) Ms. Rajani Shrestha (Internal Audit Department - Chief) ~ Member

In the fiscal year 2075/076 BS (2018/2019 AD), Rs. 160,000.00

meeting allowances has been provided to the members of
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audit committee for attending total 8 meetings. A fee of Rs.
10,000.00 per meeting has been provided to the member of
the audit committee. No allowances have been provided to

the staff member of audit committee.

The auditcommittee hasdiscussed and studied the Internal
Control System, Auditor's Report, various directives and
other related matters of the company and implemented

them after due approval of the Board of Directors.

18. Remuneration, allowances and facilities provided
to the Director, Chief Executive and the office bearers :
In the fiscal year 2075/076 BS (2018/2019 AD), a total
Rs. 10,61,500/- has been paid to the members of
the board of directors (including the meeting of the
sub-committee) as meeting allowances. Apart from this
no other facilities have been provided to the directors.
The salary, allowances and other facilities of the Chief

Executive Officer have been as follows:

AT Ieli@d ITHH dTedh wHARI JaT HIHEe
HAEAR Fo=T BT AIqH GiadT 8.330,000/- ¥
e faaT SRt €.3,30,000 /- YR TRUE |
ATId HETYaded, TeTdd HeTIavdd U Jardheoells
STHAT ITEATHeR ¥ ST a9 %.9,09%R %94 /- SRRl
feguert 3 |

9R. SHT I Sl ATHI
FFIATC TR I ATl ATATIT AT F. 09 / O
AYTTHT %.2993,90% /- T5ehl & |

Al T AT %.95,%4,000/ - Gross salary and allowances NRs. 78,65,000
FHART AAFEAAT T ERSIN %.%,059%9/ - Employee Bonus (As per Bonus Act) NRs. 6,08,167
ST 3. T.5Y,939%9/- Total NRs. 84,73,167

Apart from the above mentioned amount, the company has
provided Provident Fund of Rs. 3,30,000/-as per the staff service

bylaws and Rs. 3,30,000/- as accumulated leave encashment.

A payment of total of Rs. 107,62,615/- has been made to
the Deputy General Manager, Assistant General Manager
and Managers as remuneration and allowances during

the review period.

19. Dividends payable/outstanding:
Thedividend payable by the company at the end of the fiscal
year 2075/076 BS (2018/2019 AD) stands at Rs. 97,13,706/-.

Rel
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20. Details of the Assets purchased by the company as
per Section 141 of the Company’s Act: None

21. Details of transactions with associated company:

None

22.Anyotherdetails to be provided as perthe Company’s

Act 2063 and other prevailing laws: None

Vote of thanks

We take this opportunity to express our thanks to
regulatory authorities M/s Insurance Board (Beema Samiti),
Government of Nepal, Ministry of Finance, M/s Nepal Rastra
Bank and other concerned organizations for their guidance

and co-operation.

We express our gratitude to all the customers, agents,
shareholders and well wishers for their support and
contribution in the progress of the company and expect
similar supportin future. We appreciate the loyalty, diligence

and hard work of the employees of the company.

Lastly, we would like to express our thanks to all valued
shareholders attending this meeting with the deepest interest
over the operation of the company. We are encouraged by your
participation and we are fully confident that our company will

be benefitted by your worthy presence and advices.

Date: 29 December, 2020

On behalf of the Board of Directors,
Prema Rajya Laxmi Singh Maheshwor P. Shrestha

Chairperson Director
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NATIONAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompaning financial statements of National Life Insurance Company Limited (herein after referred as“NLIC") which comprise
the statement of financial position as at Ashadh 31, 2076 (corresponding to July 16, 2019), the statement of profit or loss, the statement of other
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the financial statements referred to above, present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the NLIC as of Ashadh 31,2076 (July 16, 2019), and its performances, changes in equity and its
cash flows for the year ended on that date in conformity with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS).

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide basis for our opinion

Independence
We are independent of NLIC in accordance with the ethical requirement that is relevant to our audit of the financial statements, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

Other Information
The directors are responsible for the other information presented in NLIC's annual report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover
the other information and accordingly we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. We have nothing to report in this respect.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with the Nepal Financial Reporting
Standards (NFRS), and for such internal control as Management determines necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the management is responsible for assessing NLIC's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate NLIC
or to cease operations or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing NLIC's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Financial

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonble assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decision of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is suffifient and appropriate to provide a

S
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basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omission, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

. Evaluate appropriateness of accounting policies used and reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the
management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertianity exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainity exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up-to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause NLIC to cease to continue as a
going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures and whether the financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We commununicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings,including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding indepedence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear our indepencence and where applicable,
related safeguards.

We communicate with those charged with goverance regarding, inter alia, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in the internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

On examination of the financial statements as aforesaid, we report that:

a.  We have obtained all information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our
audit as per NFRS;

b. We have certified another financial statement in accordance with Nepal Standards on auditing 800, Special
Consideration — Audit of the financial statements prepared as per special purpose frameworks - reporting on the financial statements
prepared in accordance with the direction issued by the Insurance Board

c. The statement of financial position as at Ashadh 31, 2076 (July 16,2019) , the statement of profit or loss, other comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flow for the year then ended on that date, and the attached summary of significant
accounting policies and notes to accounts dealt and other explanatory information (thereafter referred to as”the financial statements”) dealt
with by this report are prepared in accordance with Company Act 2063. and other prevailing legislations.

d. Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by NLIC, in so far as appears from our examination of those books of
account and the financial statements dealt with by this report, are in agreement with the books of accounts.

e. Inouropinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and from our examination of the books of
account of NLIC, we have not come across the cases where the Board of Directors or the representative or any employee of NLIC has acted
deliberately contrary to the provisions of the law relating to accounts or caused loss or damage to NLIC nor have we been informed of any
such case by the management.

Maheswarendra Bdr.Shrestha FCA
Proprietor

M.B.Shrestha & Co

Chartered Accountants

Kathmandu

UDIN # 201215CA00117M1w5e
Place: Kathmandu

Date: 8th Mangsir, 2077
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For the Year ended 31st Asadh 2076 (16th July 2019)
Statement of Financial Position
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Assets
1.1 Property, Plant and Equipment 6 243,821,330 250,049,955
1.2 Intangible Assets 7 2,883,399 2,661,696
1.3 Investment Properties 8 796,152,284 729,139,173
1.4 Financial Investment at Amortised cost 9 25,468,681,000 19,640,007,943
1.5 Financial Investment at FVTOCI 10 2,350,561,952 2,335,341,173
1.6 Investment In an Associate 11 432,296,413 322,499,966
1.7 Loans and receivables at Amortised cost 12 3,842,598,363 2,698,133,530
1.8 Other Assets 13 596,436,437 428,439,332
1.9 Current Tax Assets 14 438,306,468 345,737,586
1.10 Cash and Cash Equivalents 15 786,223,119 666,554,129
Total Assets 34,957,960,764 27,418,564,483
Equity and Liabilities
2.0 Equity
2.1 Share Capital 16 3,007,440,535 1,656,079,588
2.2 Share Premium 17 177,848,718 37,033,520
2.3 Retained Earnings 18 773,053,153 804,688,693
2.4 Catastrophe Reserve 19 218,420,132 183,311,022
2.5 Other Reserves 20 172,917,535 144,898,932
Total Equity 4,349,680,072 2,826,011,754
3.0 Policy Holders' Liability
3.1 Insurance Contract Liabilities 21 28,664,488,492 22,899,353,373
3.2 Unrealised Gains Reserve 22 690,485,376 539,077,171
Total Policy Holders' Liability 29,354,973,868 23,438,430,544
4.0 Liabilities
4.1 Financial Liabilities 23 650,698,597 564,392,776
4.2 Other Liabilities 24 198,118,337 193,269,666
4.3 Deffered Tax laibility 25 347,308,481 339,256,490
4.4 Provisions 26 57,181,408 57,203,252
Total liabilities 30,608,280,691 24,592,552,728
Total equity and liabilities 34,957,960,764 27,418,564,483

For M.B. Shrestha & Co
Chartered Accountants

Maheswarendra Bahadur Shrestha
Proprietor

Bharat Basnet
Chief Executive Officer

Prema Rajya Laxmi Singh
Chairperson

Prajwol Sayami
Finance Head

Lt. Gen. Pawan Bahadur Pande (Retd.)
Director

Rajeev Bikram Shah
Director

Kabiraj Adhikari
Director

Maheshwor Prakash Shrestha
Director

Er. Kuldeep Sharan Singh
Director

Bhawani Rana
Director

R
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For the year ended 31st Asadh 2076 (16th July 2019)

Statement of Profit or Loss
m_m

Gross premiums 8,050,523,540 6,447,635,019
1.2 Premiums ceded to reinsurers 27 (189,841,341) (268,454,262)
Net premiums 7,860,682,199 6,179,180,757
2 Fees and commission income 28 90,772,573 61,008,388
3 Investment income 29 2,613,194,420 1,969,835,631
4 Net realised gains and losses 30 0 33,808
5 Fair value gains and losses on Investment Property 8 6,701,311 15,331,150
6 Other operating income 31 46,688,347 42,487,920
Total revenue 10,618,038,850 8,267,877,654
7.1  Gross benefits and claims paid 32 2,688,707,296 2,052,742,720
7.2 Claims ceded to reinsurers 32 (138,488,945) (173,107,651)
Net benefits and claims 2,550,218,351 1,879,635,069
8 Change in Insurance contract liabilities 21 5,744,039,021 4,374,274,929
9 Acquisition Related Expenses 33 850,612,776 617,943,860
10  Service Fees 34 78,606,822 61,791,808
11 Administrative expenses 35 749,573,644 616,719,199
12 Depreciation 20,797,866 27,423,122
Total benefits, claims and other expenses 9,993,848,480 7,577,787,987
Operating profit 624,190,370 690,089,667
13 Finance cost 36 6,776,712 8,647,672
Profit before share of associates 617,413,658 681,441,995
14 Share of profit of an associate 11 10,121,823 12,380,400
Profit before tax 627,535,480 693,822,395
15  Tax expense 37 247,154,621 182,540,903
Profit for the year 380,380,860 511,281,492
Profit attributable to equity holders 380,380,860 511,281,492
Earnings per share
Basic, profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent 39 12.65 30.87
Diluted, profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent 39 12.34 17.00
Prajwol Sayami Bharat Basnet Prema Rajya Laxmi Singh For M.B.Shrestha & Co

Finance Head Chief Executive Officer Chairperson Chartered Accountants

Maheswarendra Bahadur Shrestha

Rajeev Bikram Shah Kabiraj Adhikari Lt. Gen. Pawan Bahadur Pande (Retd.) Proprietor

Director Director Director

Bhawani Rana Maheshwor Prakash Shrestha Er. Kuldeep Sharan Singh
Director Director Director
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For the Year ended 31st Asadh 2076 (16th July 2019)
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income

Profit for the year 380,380,860 511,281,492
Other Comprehensive Income(OCI)

OCl to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:

Exchange differences on retranslation of foreign operations

Fair value gains/losses on investment property

Net gain on available-for-sale financial assets (7,041,538)  (583,802,977)
Income tax relating to items that may be reclassified
Net OCI to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods (7,041,538) (583,802,977)
OCl not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Profit Share from Investment in Associate 8,578,219 (23,218,629)
Acturial Remeasurement gains on defined benefit plan 20,143,043 (15,023,978)
Net OCI not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods 28,721,262 (38,242,607)
Deferred Tax 1,760,384 145,950,744
OClI for the year, net of tax 23,440,108  (476,094,839)
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 403,820,968 35,186,653
Prajwol Sayami Bharat Basnet Prema Rajya Laxmi Singh For M.B.Shrestha & Co
Finance Head Chief Executive Officer Chairperson Chartered Accountants
Maheswarendra Bahadur Shrestha
Rajeev Bikram Shah Kabiraj Adhikari Lt. Gen. Pawan Bahadur Pande (Retd.) Proprietor
Director Director Director
Bhawani Rana Maheshwor Prakash Shrestha Er. Kuldeep Sharan Singh
Director Director Director
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For the year ended 31st Asadh 2076 (16th July 2019)

Cash Flow Statement
EII_

Cash Flow from Operating Activities

1 Premium income 8,050,523,540.37 6,447,635,018.72
2 Late Feelncome 56,199,449.65 33,930,805.93
3 Re-insurance income - -
4 Re-insurance commission Income 34,573,122.88 27,077,581.52
5 Otherdirectincome - -
6 Claim recovery from Re -insurer 138,488,944.77 173,107,651.03
7 Payment of Reinsurance premium (227,287,672.34) (260,857,032.83)
8 Payment of Re- Insurance Commission - -
9 Payment of Agent Commission (812,406,215.48) (561,270,909.27)
10 Payment of Medical Fees (7,495,178.78) (5,170,336.45)
11 Payment of Death Claims (330,501,087.39) (378,650,187.96)
12 Payment of Maturity Claims (1,342,553,557.11) (1,185,963,606.04)
13 Payment of Anticipated Maturity Claims (535,807,750.26) (157,957,157.75)
14 Payment of Surrender Claims (379,900,705.49) (262,397,245.59)
15 Payment of other claims (99,944,197.19) (67,774,522.43)
16 Payment of Service fee (64,574,505.08) (50,616,417.52)
17 Payment of other direct expenses - -
18 Payment of share related expenses (5,295,712.66) (3,684,718.39)
19 Payment of Management expenses (639,387,952.17) (487,808,526.79)
20 Payment of staff bonus (29,588,790.00) (51,381,710.00)
21 Payment of income taxes - (1,000,000.00)
22 (Increase)/Decrease In current Assets (255,488,927.10) (177,904,455.79)
23 Increase/(Decrease) In current Liabilities (76,880,212.03) (29,203,934.04)
Net Cash inflow/(outflow) from operating Activities (A) 3,472,672,594.59 3,000,110,296.35
B Cash Flow from Investing Activities
1 (Increase) Decrease In Fixed Assets 4,698,273.69 12,210,590.24
2 (Increase) Decrease In Investment in government Securities 37,200,000.00 -
3 (Increase) Decrease In Investment in fixed Deposit of Bank and (3,726,000,000.00) (3,490,000,000.00)
Financial Institution
5 (Increase) Decrease in Equity Share Investment (21,889,216.41) (225,999,719.25)
6 (Increase) Decrease in investment in preference share/ Debenture (2,140,854,000.00) (160,000,000.00)
7 (Increase) Decrease in CIT/Mutual Fund units - (25,000,000.00)
9 (Increase) Decrease in Loans Against Insurance Policies (1,053,600,328.11) (822,417,027.40)
10 (Increase) Decrease in other loans and Advances (63,637,520.25) (23,941,511.65)
11 Interest income received from investment 2,252,226,377.15 1,724,812,428.66
12 Rent Income Received 30,222,574.43 30,222,574.43
13 Interest on Policy holder loan 184,167,281.57 124,195,448.57
14 Other indirect income -

Net Cash inflow/(outflow) from investing Activities (B)

(4,497,466,557.93)

(2,855,917,216.40)

R
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Cash Flow From Financing Activities
1 Amount Receive From Issue of Shares 1,144,462,953.88 -

2 (Increase) Decrease in Long Term Loans - -
3 Increase/ Decrease in short term loans - -
4 Payment of Interest in Loan & Debenture - -
5 Payment of Dividend - -
Net Cash inFlow/(outflow) From Financing Activities (C) 1,144,462,953.88 -
Net Cash inflow/(outflow) during the year = (A+B+C) 119,668,991 144,193,080
Opening cash and cash equivalents 666,554,129 522,361,049
Closing cash and cash equivalents 786,223,119 666,554,129
Prajwol Sayami Bharat Basnet Prema Rajya Laxmi Singh For M.B.Shrestha & Co
Finance Head Chief Executive Officer Chairperson Chartered Accountants
Maheswarendra Bahadur Shrestha
Rajeev Bikram Shah Kabiraj Adhikari Lt. Gen. Pawan Bahadur Pande (Retd.) Proprietor
Director Director Director
Bhawani Rana Maheshwor Prakash Shrestha Er. Kuldeep Sharan Singh
Director Director Director
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended
on 31st Asadh 2076 (16th July 2019)

1. Corporate information

National Life Insurance Company Limited (‘the Company’) is a limited liability life insurance company domiciled in Nepal. The
company was registered in Office of the Registrar of companies, Nepal on 2043/02/19 B.S. as National Life and General Insurance
Company Limited and obtained license to operate life and non-life insurance business on 1988/01/08 A.D. from Beema Samiti (the
regulatory authority in Nepal). Later, in compliance with the new legal requirements, the Company handed over non-life business to
a newly incorporated associate in 2005 A.D. and is carrying life insurance business in the name of National Life Insurance Company
Limited since, 2008/06/17 A.D.

The Company is solely engaged in life insurance business offering individual and group plans, mainly conventional savings and
protection and pure protection business. The Company operates throughout Nepal from its corporate office located at Lazimpat,
Kathmandu, Nepal and 92 branches. The registered office is at Lazimpat, Kathmandu, Nepal. The company is listed in Nepal Stock
Exchange and its stock symbol is “NLICL".

The Company does not have any investment in subsidiaries and joint ventures.

2. Basis of Preparation
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS), as
issued by the Nepal Accounting Standards Board (ASB-Nepal).

The financial statements comprise of Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss, Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flow and Notes to Accounts.

The financial statements have been prepared on an historical cost basis, except for financial assets and investment properties that
have been measured at fair value. The carrying values of assets carried at amortized cost, are adjusted to record changes in the fair
values. The financial statements are presented in NPR rounded to the nearest rupee.

The financial statements provide comparative information in respect of the previous period. In addition, the Company presents an
additional statement of financial position at the beginning of the earliest period presented when there is a retrospective application
of an accounting policy, a retrospective restatement, or a reclassification of items in financial statements.

As permitted by NFRS 4 Insurance Contracts, the Company continues to apply the existing accounting policies that were applied
prior to the adoption of NFRS, with certain modifications allowed by the standard subsequent to adoption for its insurance contracts.

The Company has invested in a number of companies. Since, the Company does not control any of investee; these are designated
as financial investments held at fair value. The Company reassesses its control each year, on an ongoing basis.

The Company presents its statement of financial position broadly in order of liquidity. An analysis regarding recovery or settlement
within twelve months after the reporting date (no more than 12 months) and more than 12 months after the reporting date (more
than 12 months) is presented in the respective notes.

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with NFRS; require the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on management’s
best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results, ultimately, may differ from those estimates.

The financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company. As there is no subsidiary company, the financial
statements are not consolidated with the financial statements of other company.

Profit or loss and each component of OCl are attributed to the owners of the Company.

X
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2.1 Reporting period and approval of financial statements.
The company has adopted NFRS as prescribed by the Accounting Standard Board from the financial year 2074/75 and following
dates have been considered for the first time adoption:

Financial Statement Nepalese Calendar Gregorian Calendar
Comparative Statement of Financial Position 32/03/2075 16/07/2018

Comparative NFRS Reporting Period 01/04/2074 to 32/03/2075 16/07/2017 to 16/07/2018
Statement of Financial Position 31/03/2076 16/07/2019

NFRS Reporting Period 01/04/2075 to 31/03/2076 17/07/2018 to 16/07/2019

The financial statement has been adopted by the board of directors vide their meeting no. 436 held on 14.08.2020.

The approved financial statements have been recommended for approval by the shareholders in the 32nd Annual General Meeting
of the company.

3. Presentations

3.1 Presentation Currency

The Company operates within the jurisdiction of Nepal. Nepalese Rupees (NPR) is the presentation and functional currency of the
Company. Accordingly, the Financial Statements are prepared and presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR) rounded to nearest rupee.

3.2 Rearrangement and Reclassification
The figures for the year are rearranged, reclassified and/or restated wherever necessary for the purpose of compliance to the NFRS.

3.3 Statement of Financial Position

The Company presents its statement of financial position broadly in order of liquidity. An analysis regarding recovery or settlement
within twelve months after the reporting date (no more than 12 months) and more than 12 months after the reporting date (more
than 12 months) is presented in the respective notes.

3.4 Statement of Profit and Loss
The elements of Income Statement have been prepared using classification ‘by function‘method. The details of revenue, expenses,
gains and/or losses have been disclosed in the relevant notes.

3.5 Statement of Cash Flows

The statement of Cash Flows has been prepared using direct method and the activities have been grouped under three major
categories (Cash flows from operating activities, Cash flows from investing activities and Cash Flows from financing activities) in
accordance with NAS 07.

3.6 Statement of Changes in Equity
The Statements of Changes in Equity has been prepared disclosing changes in each elements of equity.

3.7 Use of Estimates, Assumptions and Judgments

The Company, under NFRS, is required to apply accounting policies to most appropriately suit its circumstances and operating
environment. The company is required to make judgments in respect of items where the choice of specific policy, accounting
estimates or assumption to be followed could materially affect the financial statements. This may later be determined that a
different choice could have been more appropriate.

The accounting policies have been included in the relevant notes for each item of the financial statements along with the effect
and nature of changes, if any.

The NFRS requires the company to make estimates and assumption that will affect the assets, liabilities, disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities, and profit or loss as reported in the financial statements. The company applies estimates in preparing and
presenting the financial statements and such estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed periodically. The revision to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and are periodically applied.
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Disclosure of the accounting estimates have been included in the relevant section of the notes, wherever the estimates have been
applied along with the nature and effect of changes of accounting estimates, if any.

3.7.1 Going Concern

The financial statements are prepared on going concern basis. The Board of the Company is satisfied that the company has the
resources to continue in business for foreseeable future by considering a wide range of information relating to present and future
conditions, including future projection of profitability, cash flows and capital resources.

3.8 Reporting Pronouncement

The company had, for preparation of financial statements, adopted the NFRS - 2013 pronounced by ASB - Nepal as effective
on July 15, 2018. The NFRS pronounced by ASB - Nepal is based on IFRS - 2012. The NFRS confirm, in all material respect, to the
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by International Accounting Standards Board (ISAB).

3.9 New Standards in issue but not yet effective
ASB - Nepal has issued Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) - 2018 which is based on IFRS 2018. The standards are effective
from 16 July 2020 except following standards which are effective from July 16 2021.

S ENTETL Remarks

NFRS 9 - Financial Instruments ® The 2013 version of NAS 39 Financial Instruments -
Recognition and Measurement continues to be effective till
financial period ending on 15 July 2020.
® The 2013 version of NFRS 9 Financial Instruments continues
to be effective till financial period ending on 15 July 2020.

NFRS - 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

NFRS - 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers The 2013 version of NAS 11: Construction Contracts and NAS
18: Revenue continues to be effective till financial period
ending on 15 July 2020.

NFRS 16: Leases The 2013 version of NAS 17: Leases continues to be effective
till financial period ending on 15 July 2020.

NFRS 17: Insurance Contracts The 2013 version of NFRS 4: Insurance Contracts continues to
be effective till financial period ending on 15 July 2020.

NAS 29: Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies Only applicable to Hyperinflationary Economies as specified in
the standard

For the reporting of financial instruments, NAS 32 Financial Instruments, Presentations, NAS 39 Financial instruments. Recognition
and Measurement and NFRS 7 Financial Instruments-Disclosure have been applied. NFRS 9 has been complied for the classification
of Financial Instruments.

A number of new standards and amendments to the existing standards and interpretation have been issued by IASB after the
pronouncements of NFRS with varying effective dates. Those become applicable when ASB Nepal incorporates within NFRS.

3.10 New Standard and Interpretation not adopted
The following amendments are not mandatory for 2019 and have not been early adopted by the group. The Company is still
currently assessing the detailed impact of these amendments.

3.10.1 IFRS 17

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts was issued by IASB on 18 May 2017 and has a mandatory effective date of annual period beginning on
or after 1 January 2022. It supersedes IFRS 4 Insurance Contract. IFRS 17 with corresponding effective date has not been endorsed
by Accounting Standard Board (ASB) of Nepal yet. The management is still assessing the potential impact on its financial statements,
if IFRS 17 applied in future.

20
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3.10.2 IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instrument’-Impairment

IFRS 9Financial Instrument ‘was issued by the IASB on July 2014 and effective internationally for the financial beginning on or after
1 January 2018. Accounting Standard Board of Nepal endorsed NFRS 9 Financial Instruments with some exceptions, mainly in the
Impairment. Currently, Incurred Loss Model as specified in NAS 39 is used. The requirement of IFRS 9 is Expected Credit Loss Model.
The management is still assessing the potential impact on its financial statements if Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model is introduced.

3.10.3 IFRS 16 ‘Leases’

IFRS 16°leases'is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. IFRS 16 is the new accounting standard for leases
and will replace IAS 17" Leases” and IFRIC 4 “Determining whether an Agreement contains a Lease! The new standard removes
the distinction between operating or finance lease for lessee accounting, resulting in all leases being treated as finance leases. All
leases will be recognized on the statement of financial position with the optional exception for short term leases with lease term
of less than 12 months and leases of low- value assets (for example mobile phones or laptops). A lessee is required to recognize a
right-of-use assets representing its right to use the underlying leased assets and a lease liability representing its obligation to make
lease payments. The main reason for this change is that this approach will result in a more comparable representation of a lessee’s
assets and liabilities in relation to other companies and together with enhanced disclosure, will provide greater transparency of a
lessee’s financial leverage and capital employed. The standard permits a lessee to choose either a full retrospective or a modified
retrospective transition approach.

IFRS 16 Leases has not yet been made effective by the Accounting Standard Board of Nepal.

3.11 Discounting
Discounting has been applied where assets and liabilities are non-current and the impact of the discounting is material.

3.12 Limitation of NFRS Implementation
Wherever the information is not adequately available, and /or it is impracticable to develop the, such exception to NFRS has been
noted and disclosed in respective sections.

4. Significant accounting policies

4.1. Property and equipment

a) Recognition and Measurement:

Items of property, plant, and equipment should be recognised as assets when it is probable that:

> itis probable that the future economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to the entity, and
> the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

An item of property, plant and equipment should initially be recorded at cost. Cost includes all costs necessary to bring the asset
to working condition for its intended use. This would include not only its original purchase price but also costs of site preparation,
delivery and handling, installation, related professional fees for architects and engineers, and the estimated cost of dismantling and
removing the asset and restoring the site.

Property and equipment, including owner-occupied property, is stated at cost, excluding the costs of day-to-day servicing, less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes all costs necessary to bring the asset to working
condition for its intended use. This would include not only its original purchase price but also costs of site preparation, delivery and
handling, installation, related professional fees for architects and engineers, Replacement or major inspection costs are capitalized
when incurred, if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably.

b) Capital Work in Progress :
Assets under construction and cost of assets not put to use are shown as capital work in progress.

c) Depreciation:

Depreciation is provided on a straight line basis prospectively from 2017/18 using the under mentioned life.
» Buildings- 40 years

» Leasehold improvements - 5 years
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» Furniture and Fixtures — 10 years
» Equipment - 5 years

> IT Equipment-5 years

» Others- 10 years

> Vehicles - 10 years

The assets' residual values, and useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each financial
year end and adjusted.

d) De-recognition:

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no further future economic benefits are expected from
its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognized.
The gains are not classified as revenue.

4.2. Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets
are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles,
including development costs, are not capitalized and the related expenditure is reflected in statement of profit or loss in the year
in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset
with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern
of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortization period or method,
as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives
is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually either individually or at the CGU level. Such
intangibles are not amortized. The useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether
indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is
made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

4.3 Investment Property

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the reporting date. Gains or losses arising from changes in
the fair values of investment properties are included in the statement of profit or loss in the year in which they arise, including the
corresponding tax effect. Fair values are evaluated annually by an accredited external, independent valuator.

Investment properties are derecognized either when they have been disposed of, or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal
of an investment property are recognized in the statement of profit or loss in the year of retirement or disposal.

Transfers are made to (or from) investment property only when there is a change in use. For a transfer from investment property
to owner-occupied property, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the fair value at the date of change in use. If owner-
occupied property becomes an investment property, the Company accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated
under property and equipment up to the date of change in use.

®
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4.4. Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of
another entity.

4.4.1 Financial assets

a. Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, loans and receivables, held to maturity (HTM) investments, available-for-sale
(AFS) financial assets, as appropriate. Financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of investments not at
FVPL, directly attributable transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

The classification depends on the purpose for which the investments were acquired or originated. Financial assets are classified as
at FVPL where the Company’s documented investment strategy is to manage financial investments on a fair value basis, because
the related liabilities are also managed on this basis. The HTM category is used when the relevant liability (including shareholders’
funds) is passively managed and/or carried at amortized cost. The AFS is carried at fair value through OCI.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in
the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell
the asset.

The Company'’s financial assets include cash and short-term deposits, trade and other receivables, loans and other receivables.

b. Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
» Financial Investments at FVTPL

» Loans and receivables at amortized Cost

» Financial Investments at Amortized Cost

» Financial Investment at FVTOCI

4.4.2 Financial Investment at FVTOCI
Financial Investment at FVTOCI includes equity securities. Equity investments classified as Financial Investment at FVTOCI are those
that are neither classified as held for trading nor designated at FVTPL.

After initial measurement, Financial Investment at FVTOCI is subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealized gains or losses
recognized in OCI. Where the insurer holds more than one investment in the same security they are deemed to be disposed of on
a first-in first-out basis.

Dividends earned whilst holding AFS investments are recognized in the statement of profit or loss as‘Investment income’ when the
right of the payment has been established. When the asset is derecognized or determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or
loss is reclassified from OCI- fair value Reserve to the statement of profit or loss and removed from the OCl-fair Value reserve.

The Company evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell its Financial Investment at FVTOCl in the near termis still appropriate.
When, in rare circumstances, the Company is unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets, the Company may
elect to reclassify these financial assets if the management has the ability and intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable
future or until maturity. For a financial asset reclassified out of the Financial Investment at FVTOCI category, the fair value carrying
amount at the date of reclassification becomes its new amortized cost and any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognized in equity is amortized to profit or loss over the remaining life of the investment using the EIR. Any difference between
the new amortized cost and the maturity amount is also amortized over the remaining life of the asset using the EIR. If the asset
is subsequently determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.

The unquoted equity investments are recorded at book value.

4.4.3 Loans and receivables at amortized Cost
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement, loans and receivables are measured at amortized cost, using the EIR method, less allowance
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for impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fee or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in ‘investment income’ in the statement of profit or loss. Gains and
losses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss when the investments are derecognized or impaired, as well as through the
amortization process.

4.4.4 Financial Investments at Amortized Cost

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities are classified as Financial Investments at
Amortized Cost when the Company has the positive intention and ability to hold until maturity. After initial measurement, Financial
Investments at Amortized Cost are measured at amortized cost, using the EIR, less impairment. The EIR amortization is included in
‘investment income’ in the statement of profit or loss. Gains and losses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss when the
investments are derecognized or impaired, as well as through the amortization process. The premium paid on government bonds
have been amortized equally throughout the holding period. The same has been completely amortized as of 16/07/2019.

4.4.5 De-recognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, when applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is de-recognized when:

» The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
» The Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a‘pass-through’arrangement; and either:

(a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset or
(b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control
of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, and
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset
is recognized to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the Company also recognizes an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

4.4.6 Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets
is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that has occurred since the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’) and that loss
event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization and observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

a) Available-for-sale financial investments
For financial investments at FVTOCI, the Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that an
investment or a group of investments is impaired.

In the case of equity investments classified as financial investments at FVTOCI, objective evidence would include a ‘significant
or prolonged’ decline in the fair value of the investment below its cost. ‘Significant’ is evaluated against the original cost of the
investment and ‘prolonged’ against the period in which the fair value has been below its original cost. Where there is evidence
of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously recognized in the statement of profit or loss — is removed from OCl and recognized
in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity investments are not reversed through profit or loss; increases in
their fair value after impairment are recognized directly in OCI. The determination of what is ‘significant’ or ‘prolonged’ requires
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judgment. In making this judgment, the Company evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to which the fair value of
an investment is less than its cost.

b)Financial Investments at amortized cost

For financial Investments carried at amortized cost, the Company first assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Company
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognized are not
included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present value of
the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the loss is recognized in the statement
of profit or loss. Interest income (recorded as investment income in the statement of profit or loss) continues to be accrued on
the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. Loans together with the associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect
of future recovery and all collateral has been realized or has been transferred to the Company. If, in a subsequent year, the amount
of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the
previously recognized impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later recovered,
the recovery is credited to finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

4.5 Investment in an associate
An associate is an entity over which the Company has significant influence and which is neither a subsidiary nor a joint venture.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but it is not control
or joint control over those policies.

The Company'’s investment in its associate is accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity method, the investment
in an associate is carried in the statement of financial position at cost plus post-acquisition changes in the Company’s share of
net assets of the associate. Goodwill relating to an associate is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is neither
amortized nor individually tested for impairment.

The statement of profit or loss reflects the share of the results of operations of the associate. Any change in OCI of the investee
is presented as part of the Company’s OCl. In addition, when there has been a change recognized directly in the equity of the
associate, the Company recognizes its share of any changes and discloses this, when applicable, in the statement of changes in
equity. Unrealized gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Company and the associate are eliminated to the
extent of the interest in the associate.

The aggregate of the Company’s share of profit of the associate is shown on the face of the statement of profit or loss. This is profit
attributable to equity holders of the associate and, therefore, is profit after tax and non-controlling interests in the subsidiaries of
the associates.

The financial statements of the associate are prepared for the same reporting period as the Company. Where necessary, adjustments
are made to bring its accounting policies in line with the Company’s accounting policies.

After application of the equity method, the Company determines whether it is necessary to recognize an additional impairment
loss on the Company’s investment in associates. The Company determines at each reporting date, whether there is any objective
evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Company calculates the amount of impairment as
the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value and recognizes the amount in the ‘share of
profit of an associate’in the statement of profit or loss.
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Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Company measures and recognizes any remaining investment at its fair
value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of significant influence and the fair value of the
remaining investment and proceeds from disposal is recognized in profit or loss.

4.6. Financial liabilities
4.6.1 Recognition and Measurement

a. Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at FVPL, loans and borrowings, payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and insurance payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, borrowings and re-insurance payables.

b. Subsequent measurement
Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as follows:

Financial liabilities at FVPL
Financial liabilities at FVPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as
at FVPL.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at FVPL are designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if the
criteria in NFRS 7 are satisfied.

Gains or losses on designated or held for trading liabilities are recognized in fair value gains and losses in the statement of profit
or loss.

4.6.2 Interest bearing loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method.
Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization
process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fee or costs that are an integral part
of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance cost in the statement of profit or loss.

4.6.3 De-recognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition
of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

4.7. Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

4.8. Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments at FVTOCI and investment property at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value
related disclosures for financial instruments and investment property are disclosed and summarized in the following notes:

» Disclosures for significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions Note 5
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» Investment properties Note 8
» Financial instruments (including those carried at amortized cost) Note 10

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market

participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the

asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

i. Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or

ii. In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

All assets, liabilities and equity items for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within

the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole.

> Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

> Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or
indirectly observable

» Level 3 —Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest
and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

4.9. Taxes
Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss except to the extent
that they relate to items recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

4.9.1 Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date in Nepal.

Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity or OCl is recognized in equity or OCl and not in the statement of
profit or loss.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations
are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions, where appropriate.

4.9.2 Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and

their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable

temporary differences, except:

» When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

> In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in associates, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future
Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, except where the deferred tax
asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
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is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax
assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit
will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the asset is realized
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss. Deferred tax items are recognized
in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCl or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

4.9.3 Value Added Tax
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognized including VAT wherever applicable.

4.10. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and short-term deposits in the statement of financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above,
net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management. Cash and cash
equivalents are carried at amortized cost in the statement of financial position.

4.11. Equity movements

4.11.1 Ordinary share capital

The Company has issued ordinary shares that are classified as equity instruments. As the company has not issued share capital after
adoption of NFRS, incremental external costs that are directly attributable to the issue of these shares are not recognized in equity.

4.11.2 Dividends on ordinary share capital
Dividends on ordinary shares are recognized as a liability and deducted from equity when they are approved by the Company’s
shareholders. Interim dividends are deducted from equity when they are paid.

Dividends for the year that are approved after the reporting date are dealt with as an event after the reporting date.

4.12 Catastrophe Reserves
The company has apportioned 10% of the net profit derived as prescribed by Beema Samiti for the catastrophe reserve as per the
regulatory requirement. Such reserves are not distributable and are kept as a safe guard against catastrophe claims.

4.13 Other Reserves:
The other reserves include OCl-fair value reserve, rent equalization reserve, and regulatory reserve.

OCI- Reserve: This reserve is created through the transfer of fair value gains and losses in the investment carried at FVTOCI.

Rent Equalization Reserve: This reserve is created from the effect of equalization of rent income and expense. This reserve shall be
written off over the period of the lease agreement.

Regulatory reserve: It includes any amount derived as result of NFRS convergence with effect in retained earning computed as per
the instruction of Beema Samiti.

4.14 Unrealized Gains Reserve:

This reserve has been created by transferring 90% of the unrealized gains from investment property and investment in associates. The
reserve shall be utilized to compensate any loss in fair valuation of these assets in future or for bonus equalization to policyholders.
The reserve is a designated reserve and is not available for distribution to shareholders.
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4.15. Insurance contract liabilities

Life insurance liabilities are recognized when contracts are entered into and premiums are received. These liabilities are measured
using the gross premium method as prescribed by the Beema Samiti (regulating authority for insurance company in Nepal). The
liability is determined separately for each contract using a prospective calculation by projecting future cash flows on a monthly basis
till the end of term of policy. For each product, the cash flows considered are: premium income, expenses (including commission),
death outgo, maturity outgo and survival outgo (if applicable). The office premium for the base cover, excluding rider premiums
and extra premiums if any, is considered for valuing the liabilities. The contractual benefits under each product have been modeled
in accordance with the product specifications for each plan. For participating products, sum assured and vested bonuses as at the
valuation date is considered as part of the liability. The rider reserves have been computed using the Unearned Premium Reserve
method. Negative reserves, if any, are set to zero at a policy level. As per directives of Beema Samiti, lapsed policies can be revived
at any time irrespective of when the policy had lapsed. In view of the said directives a provision for revival of lapsed policies is
held for all the policies that are lapsed but under which liability may arise. Lapsed policies are valued as enforce and 20% of such
reserves net of premiums receivable and commissions’ payable, is held as the provision. This assumes a revival rate of 20% based
on the revival experience of the Company in the concerned year. Provision is also made towards substandard lives the Company
is exposed to owing to the extra mortality risk. The full amount of extra premium is held as provision. A contingency reserve is
held to cover any unforeseen event and issues. Reinsurance has been incorporated into the valuation models during the year,
based on the reinsurance treaties. Henceforth, reserves net of reinsurance receivables will be used for the liability for life insurance
contracts comprises the provision for unexpired risks on term policy and premium deficiency, as well as for claims outstanding,
which includes an estimate of the incurred claims that have not yet been reported to the Company. Adjustments to the liabilities at
each reporting date are recorded in the statement of profit or loss in‘Change in insurance contract liabilities’

At each reporting date, an assessment is made of whether the recognized life insurance liabilities are adequate by using an existing
liability adequacy test performed in accordance with Nepal GAAP. The liability value is adjusted to the extent that it is insufficient to
meet expected future benefits and expenses.

Aggregation levels and the level of prudence applied in the test are consistent with Nepal GAAP requirements. To the extent that
the test involves discounting of cash flows, the interest rate applied is lower of investment return or 6% (prescribed by Beema
Samiti)

4.16. Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities includes commission payable to agent and payable to reinsurer amongst other financial liabilities. Commission
payable to agents and payable to reinsurer is recognized when premium is received. Payable to reinsurer is shown net of receivable
against claim and commission. Other financial liabilities are recognized when due.

4.18. Provisions

4.18.1 General

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, and it
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Where the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed,
the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating
to a provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement. If the effect of the time value of money is
material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

A disclosure for contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may but probably will
not require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood
of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made. Contingent assets are assessed continually and if it is virtually
certain that an inflow of etc.

4.18.2 Onerous contracts

A provision is recognized for onerous contracts in which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract
exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it. The unavoidable costs reflect the least net cost of exiting the
contract, which is the lower of the cost of fulfilling it and any compensation or penalties arising from failure to fulfill it.
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4.19. Revenue recognition

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits during the period arising from the course of the ordinary activities of an entity
when those inflows result in increases in equity, other than increases relating to contributions from equity participants. Revenue is
recognized when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity and those benefits can be measured reliably.

4.19.1 Gross premiums
Gross recurring premiums on life insurance contracts are recognized as and when premium is received.

4.19.2 Reinsurance premiums
Gross outward reinsurance premiums on life insurance contracts are recognized as an expense when the policy holder pays the
premium to the company.

Reinsurance premiums and claims on the face of the statement of profit or loss have been presented as negative items within
premiums and net benefits and claims, respectively, because this is consistent with how the business is managed.

4.19.3 Reinsurance ceded to reinsurance counterparties

The Company cedes insurance risk in the normal course of business exceeding its retention capacity prescribed by Beema samiti for
all of its businesses. Reinsurance assets represent balances due from reinsurance companies. Amounts recoverable from reinsurers
are estimated in a manner consistent with the outstanding claims provision or settled claims associated with the reinsurer’s policies
and are in accordance with the related reinsurance contract.

Reinsurance assets are reviewed for impairment at each reporting date, or more frequently, when an indication of impairment
arises during the reporting period. Impairment occurs when there is objective evidence as a result of an event that occurred after
initial recognition of the reinsurance asset that the Company may not receive all outstanding amounts due under the terms of the
contract and the event has a reliably measurable impact on the amounts that the Company will receive from the reinsurer. The
impairment loss is recorded in the statement of profit or loss.

Gains or losses on buying reinsurance are recognized in the statement of profit or loss immediately at the date of purchase and are
not amortized.

Ceded reinsurance arrangements do not relieve the Company from its obligations to policyholders.

4.19.4 Fees and commission income

Fees and commission are commission on reinsurance ceded and late fee charged to policyholders on delay in premium payment
or revival of lapsed policy. Commission on reinsurance ceded are recognized as income when premium ceded is recognized as
expense. Late fee is recognized as income when received.

4.19.5 Investment income

Interest income is recognized in the statement of profit or loss as it accrues and is calculated by using the EIR method. Fees and
commissions that are an integral part of the effective yield of the financial asset are recognized as an adjustment to the EIR of the
instrument.

Income on interest free loan or loans at concessional to employees are calculated using EIR and taken as income and expensed in
personnel cost.

Investment income also includes dividends when the right to receive payment is established.

4.19.6 Realized gains and losses

Realized gains and losses recorded in the statement of profit or loss include gains and losses on financial assets, properties and
equipment. Gains and losses on the sale of investments are calculated as the difference between net sales proceeds and the original
or amortized cost and are recorded on occurrence of the sale transaction.

4.19.7 Fair value gains and losses on Investment Property

Fair value gains and losses are the difference between the fair value and the book value of the investment property. Only 10% of
the revaluation gains have been booked in the SOPL. The remaining 90% of the gains have been transferred to the unrealized gains
reserve. The fair value of the investment property has been valued by a certified independent valuator.
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4.20. Benefits, claims and expenses recognition

a. Gross benefits and claims

Gross benefits and claims for life insurance contracts include the cost of all claims arising during the year, including external claims
handling costs that are directly related to the processing and settlement of claims and policyholder bonuses declared on contracts.
Changes in the gross valuation of insurance contract liabilities are also included. Death claims and surrenders are recorded on the
basis of notifications received. Maturities and annuity payments are recorded when due. Claims also include 15% of outstanding
claims for IBNR (Incurred But Not Reported) as prescribed by Beema Samiti.

b. Reinsurance claims
Reinsurance claims are recognized when the related gross insurance claim is recognized according to the terms of the relevant
contract.

4.21 Acquisition Related Expenses

Since the Company recognizes premium income on premium receipts basis, no direct and indirect costs incurred during the
financial period arising from the acquiring or renewing of insurance contracts, are deferred. Consequently, all acquisition costs
are recognized as an expense when due. Agent’s commission is recognized as expense when due and Medical expenses, whether
incurred for proposal accepted or rejected, are expensed during the year. Similarly agent training expenses and other expenses
relating to agents are not deferred as future cash flow generation cannot be estimated.

Costs related to reinsurance are not recorded as deferred acquisition cost as the liability to pay the reinsurer arises on receipt of
premium.

4.22. Employee Benefits

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by an entity in exchange for service rendered by employees or for the

termination of employment. The employee benefits are recognized as under:

» A liability when an employee has provided service in exchange for employee benefits to be paid in the future; and

» An expense when the entity consumes the economic benefit arising from the service provided by an employee in exchange for
employee benefits.

Short-term employee benefits
These are recognized when the employee has rendered the service and are measured at the undiscounted amount of benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for that service to be settled within 12 months, other than termination benefits

Post-employment benefits (other than termination benefits and short-term employee benefits)
The Company has a defined benefit plan for post-employment benefits.

> A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate
entity (a fund) and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods. Under NAS 19, when an employee
has rendered service to an entity during a period, the entity recognizes the contribution payable to a defined contribution plan
in exchange for that service as a liability (accrued expense) and as an expense, unless another Standard requires or permits the
inclusion of the contribution in the cost of an asset.

> A defined benefit plan is any post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. Under NAS 19, an entity
uses an actuarial technique (the projected unit credit method) to estimate the ultimate cost to the entity of the benefits that
employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; discounts that benefit in order to determine
the present value of the defined benefit obligation and the current service cost; deducts the fair value of any plan assets from
the present value of the defined benefit obligation; determines the amount of the deficit or surplus; and determines the amount
to be recognized in profit and loss and other comprehensive income in the current period. Those measurements are updated
each period.
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Other long-term benefits
These are all employee benefits other than short-term employee benefits, post-employment benefits and termination benefits.
Measurement is similar to defined benefit plans.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are employee benefits provided in exchange for the termination of an employee’s employment. The Company

recognizes a liability and expense for termination benefits at the earlier of the following dates:

» when the entity can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and

» when the entity recognizes costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of NAS 37 and involves the payment of termination
benefits.

4.23 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective assets. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.

4.24. Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease, or contains a lease, is based on the substance of the arrangement at the
inception date and requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific
asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset, even if that asset is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Rental income and expenses are recognized as expenditure in the statement of profit or loss on a straight line basis over the lease
term. Contingent rents are recognized as expenditure in the period in which they are incurred.

4.25. Foreign currency translation
The Company'’s financial statements are presented in Nepalese Rupee (NPR) which is also the company’s functional currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at functional currency spot rate prevailing at the date the
transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rate of exchange
at the reporting date.

All differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are taken to the statement of profit or loss.

4.26. Product classification

Insurance contracts are those contracts where the Company (the insurer) has accepted significant insurance risk from another party
(the policyholders) by agreeing to compensate the policyholders if a specified uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely
affects the policyholders. As a general guideline, the Company determines whether it has significant insurance risk, by comparing
benefits payable after an insured event with benefits payable if the insured event did not occur.

Once a contract has been classified as an insurance contract, it remains an insurance contract for the remainder of its lifetime, even
if the insurance risk reduces significantly during this period, unless all rights and obligations are extinguished or expire. Accordingly,
contracts without insurance risk but recognized as insurance contracts till F/Y 2017/18 have been treated as insurance contracts.

The company has not opted unbundling of deposit and insurance components.

Insurance contracts are further classified as being either with or without bonus. Bonus is a contractual right to receive, as a
supplement to guaranteed benefits, additional benefits at prescribed rates.

4.27. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and its carrying cost. The recoverable amount
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is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or Company’s assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company makes an estimate
of the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in
the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of amortization or depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in
prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

4.28 Segment information

The company offers life insurance. Under life insurance the company offers savings, protection products and other long-term
contracts (both with and without insurance risk and with and without bonus. It comprises a wide range of whole life, term assurance.
Revenue is derived primarily from insurance premiums, fees and commission income, investment income and fair value gains and
losses on investments.

For management purposes, the operating segment is organized into business units based on their products and services and has
five reportable operating segments, as follows:

Endowment : This is a with profit plan that makes provisions for the family of the Life Assured in event of his early death and also
assures a lump sum at a desired age on maturity. It costs moderate premiums, has high liquidity and in savings oriented. This plan
is apt for people of all ages and social groups who wish to protect their families from a financial setback that may occur owing to
their demise.

Anticipated: This scheme provides for specific periodic payments of partial survival benefits during the term of the policy itself so
long as the policy holder is alive. It is therefore suitable to meet specified financial requirements needed for occasions like Brata
bandha, Academic Graduations etc. An important feature of plan is that in the event of death at any time within the policy term,
the death claim comprises full sum assured without deducting any of the survival benefit amounts, which have already been paid.
Itis also with profit plan.

Whole Life: This plan is a combination of Endowment Assurance and Whole Life with profit plan. It provides financial protection
against death throughout the lifetime of the life assured with the provision of payment of a lump sum at the maturity of the policy
to the assured in case of his survival.

Term: Term life insurance, also known as pure life insurance, is life insurance that guarantees payment of a stated death benefit
during a specified term. Once the term expires, the policyholder can renew it for another term, convert the policy to permanent
coverage, or allow the policy to terminate.

Special: Special Term insurance is a modified version of term insurance with added benefits

Segment performance is evaluated based on profit or loss and is measured consistently with profit or loss in the consolidated
financial statements.

No inter-segment transactions occurred in 2017/18 and 2018/19.

5. Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future reporting periods.
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5.1 Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were
prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or
circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

5.1.1 Valuation of insurance contract liabilities

The liability for life insurance contracts is either based on current assumptions or on assumptions established at the inception of the
contract, reflecting the best estimate at the time together with a margin for risk and adverse deviation. All contracts are subject to
a liability adequacy test, which reflect management’s best current estimate of future cash flows.

The main assumptions used relate to mortality, investment returns, expenses, and discount rates. The Company bases mortality on
100% of NALM (Nepal Assured Lives Mortality) 2009 Tables based on the observed mortality of Nepalese lives up till September
20009. It is mandatory to use this table under circular of Beema Samiti.

The valuation rate of interest is based on the historical and current returns earned by the Company, as well as the expected outlook
for the future, subject to maximum of 6% as prescribed by Beema Samiti..

The expense assumptions reflect the projected costs of maintaining and servicing in-force policies and associated overhead
expenses. The current level of expenses is taken as the expense base, and expense inflation of 4% per annum is assumed in the cash
flow projections.

Policy withdrawals (Lapse and surrender rates) are not considered as it is more prudent in absence of persistency study. The
Company is evaluating merits of persistency study and may resort to consider policy withdrawals in future in valuation of insurance
liabilities.

5.1.2 Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the statement of financial position cannot be measured
based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques. The inputs to these models are
taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair
values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and model inputs such as volatility for longer
dated derivatives and discount rates, prepayment rates and default rate assumptions for asset backed securities.

Changes in assumptions relating to these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

5.2 Other disclosures

Other disclosures relating to the Company’s exposure to risks and uncertainties includes:
» Capital management Note 40

» Insurance and financial risk management and policies Note 41

» Sensitivity analyses disclosures Note 41.3
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7. Intangibles

At 1st Shrawan 2074 2,720,091
Additions during the year 900,000
Deduction during the year 0
As at 31 Ashadh 2075 3,620,091
Accumulated Ammortization 0
At 1st Shrawan 2074 448,564
Additions during the year 509,831
As at 31 Ashadh 2075 958,395
Carrying Cost 0
As at 31 Ashadh 2075 2,661,696
As at 31 Ashadh 2074 2,271,527

0
At 1st Shrawan 2075 3,620,091
Additions during the year 900,000
Deduction during the year 0
As at 31 Ashadh 2076 4,520,091
Accumulated Ammortization 1]
At 1st Shrawan 2075 958,395
Additions during the year 678,297
As at 31 Ashadh 2076 1,636,692
Carrying Cost 0
As at 31 Ashadh 2076 2,883,399
As at 31 Ashadh 2075 2,661,696

Intangibles comprise of software. The cost of software is amortized in 5 years.

8. Investment Properties

i st

Opening Balance 729,139,173 575,827,669
2 Reclassification from propertyand - -

Equipment
3 Fair Value Gains/Losses 67,013,111 153,311,504
4 Total Investment Property 796,152,284 729,139,173

The investment properties are in the form of land at Kathmandu, Pokhara, Biratnagar, Birgunj and Nepalgunj. There are no
restrictions on the realisability of investment properties or proceeds of disposal.

Description of valuation techniques used and key inputs to valuation of investment properties:
Name of Valuator: Prabin Bajracharya Lic No.:”A” 3884 Civil Engineer
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VALUATION THEORY AND METHODOLOGY
Following method have been adopted for computing the value of the properties.

Valuation of Land

Comparative method
In this method, the sales from transaction of vicinity of land properties are studied and then a fair price for the land is fixed
bassoon on the collective data.

The physical nature such as length, width, situation etc. is required to consider in detail before fixing up the price.

Extensive inquiry is carried by the associates with the local residents familiar with the property transactions around the locality
to find out the current buying and selling price of the land

The rate of the land adopted by the government tax department for the particular locality is also noted. Due weight age is
given to all the information and most probable Current land rate is fixed and adopted. Seventy (70%)-thirty 30%) approach is
considered in the ratio for commercial rate and government rate.

The main factors we have considered for the land valuation are accessibility, centrality location, business relevance and future
scope of the land

Development method

When a property to be valued is fairly big and no data available from similar land but sales transaction of small plots are
available, on the basis we may adopt the method of development. In this method, the properties which are in the undeveloped
stage or partly developed and partly undeveloped stage, the total land is divided into number of plots after providing for roads,
parks etc. In such cases, the probable selling price of divided plots, the area required for roads, parks etc and other expenses
for development should be known in such a way that the similar facilities and conditions are maintained to match with the
available surrounding units for compensation.

Details of Fair Value:

Particulars 31.03.2075 31.03.2076

Biratnagar 85,612,800 92,815,800
Birgunj 25,863,750 28,108,125
Nepalgunj 45,313,975 49,140,875
Pokhara 14,573,648 15,864,984
Thamel 557,775,000 610,222,500
Total 729,139,173 796,152,284
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9. Financial Investment at Amortized Cost

Sl e )

Government Securities 186,950,000 225,130,943

2 Fixed Deposits in Commercial Bank 21,525,000,000 18,385,000,000
3 Fixed Deposits in Development Bank 883,500,000 320,000,000
4 Fixed Deposits in Finance Company 42,500,000 20,000,000
5 Debentures and bonds 2,830,731,000 689,877,000
10 Total 25,468,681,000 19,640,007,943

10. Financial Investment at FVTOCI

o paricors | s | aoraain

1 Investment in shares 2,252,524,217 2,237,616,033
Book Value 923,491,033 901,228,717
Transfer to OCl 1,329,033,184 1,336,387,316

2 Investment in Mutual Funds 98,037,735 97,725,140
Book Value 97,725,140 97,725,140
Transfer to OCI 312,595 0
Total 2,350,561,952  2,335,341,173

Available-for-sale financial assets consists of certain quoted and unquoted equities and debt securities. Quoted securities are
valued at market price at the end of the financial year. Unquoted shares are valued at cost. Debt securities maturing within
1 year of 2074/75: Rs.13,000,000 2075/76: Rs.10,00,00,000

11. Investment in Associates
The Company has a 50% interest in its only associate, NLG Insurance Company Limited, which is involved in the non-life insurance
business in Nepal.

NLG Insurance Company Limited is a public limited company that is listed on Nepal Stock Exchange (NEPSE) and there are no
published price quotations for the fair value of this investment (promoter share). The Company’s interest in NLG Insurance
Company Limited is accounted for using the equity method in the financial statements. The reporting date and reporting period
of NLG Insurance Company Limited is the same as the Company and both use uniform accounting policies. NLG Insurance
Company Limited is required to maintain a minimum solvency margin based on Beema Samiti directives. Such restrictions
can affect the ability of the associate to transfer funds in the form of cash dividends. Therefore, there can be no assurance
that these restrictions will not become a limitation in the future. There is no unrecognized share of losses in the associate.
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Place of Business
Percentage of Interest
Measurement Method
Non Current Assets
Current Assets

Non Current Liabilities

2075/76

2074/75

NLG Insurance Co. LTD.

Nepal

50%
Equity Method
2,241,166,412
1,595,833,890
1,768,325,189

1,976,338,661
1,469,563,502
1,616,178,302

Current Liabilities 393,029,566 376,376,248
Net Assets 1,675,645,547 1,453,347,613
Company’s Share of Net Assets 837,822,774 726,673,807
Revenue 1,666,006,540 1,504,855,335
Depreciation and Amortization 5,901,792 4,211,746
Interest Income 185,767,870 156,735,657
Interest Expense 0 0
Income Tax Expense (66,056,498) 121,439,119
Profit or Loss from Continuing Operations 202,436,456 247,607,994
Psot Tax Profit or Loss from Discontinuing Operations 0 0
Other Comprehensive Income 17,156,437 (46,437,257)
Total Comprehensive Income 219,592,893 201,170,736
Company'’s Share of Profits 101,218,228 123,803,997

a) Profit Transferred to Share holders 10,121,823 12,380,400

b)Profit transferred to Policy holders 91,096,405 111,423,597
Company’s Share of Other Comprehensive Income 8,578,219 (23,218,629)
Cash Dividends Received 0 0
Cash and Cash Equivalents 298,553,152 375,851,787
Current Financial Liabilities (Excluding Trade and Other Payables and Provisions) 0

Note 25: Investment in Associates

2075/76 (Rs.)

2074/75 (Rs.)

I o

Cost of investment 112,500,000 112,500,000
Share of Post Acquisition profit upto 2072/73 24,442,576 24,442,576
Share of Post Acquisition profit for 2073/74 84,972,022 84,972,022
Share of Post Acquisition profit for 2074/75 100,585,368 100,585,368
Share of Post Acquisition profit for 2075/76 109,796,447

Total 432,296,413 322,499,966

Cash Dividends have not been received from NLG Insurance Company Limited during the reporting period

Management considers the investment in NLG Insurance Company Limited to be more than 12 months’investment.
The associate had no contingent liabilities or capital commitments as at 31 Ashadh 2075 or 2074. And no guarantees or collaterals

were provided to the associate.
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12. Loans and Receivables at Amortized Cost

SN Particulars 2075/76 (Rs.) 2074/75 (Rs.)
1 Loans to related parties 0 0
2 Receivables from related parties 0 0
3 Deposits with credit institutions 0 0
4 Other Deposits 808,652 808,652
5 Loansto Agents 110,792,600 75,264,996
Less: Impairment 8,063,153 8,063,153
Net Loans to Agents 102,729,447 67,201,843
6 Loans to Employees 78,364,566 32,760,903
Less: Impairment 0 0
Net Loans to Employees 78,364,566 32,760,903
7 Loans to Policyholders 3,597,610,220 2,544,009,892
8 Sundry Debtors 38,448,834 28,391,617
9 Advance Payments 836,106 836,106
10 Employee Advance 3,955,449 3,682,824
11 Other Advances 2,198,366 5,305,803
12 Stationery 2,687,261 2,523,422
13 Receivable against matured investment 10,030,000 10,030,000
14 Prepaid Expenses 4,929,462 2,582,467
Total 3,842,598,363 2,698,133,530

13. Other Assets

T

Accrued on Investments 171,026,209 94,114,019

2 Accrued on Policyholders Loan 425,410,228 317,783,781
3 Accrued on Loans to Employees 0 0
4 Deferred Expenses on Employee Benefit 0 16,541,531
Total 596,436,437 428,439,332

14. Current Tax Assets

o partcuars

1 Asat31 Shrawan 2073 750,774,410 586,437,053
Additions during the year 252,631,596 164,337,357
Total 1,003,406,006 750,774,410

Less: Provision for Income Tax (565,099,538) (405,036,824)

5 Total 438,306,468 345,737,586

Yo
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15. Cash and Cash Equivalents
] 77 Y7) 7 77}

Cash in Hand 743,857 441,357

2 CashatBank 416,207,804 363,756,196
3 Call Deposits 205,530,479 203,099,156
4 Cash Cheque Drafts in Hand 163,157,940 98,732,381
5 Gold Coins 583,039 525,039
Total 786,223,119 666,554,129

Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months, depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Company.

The carrying amounts disclosed above reasonably approximate fair value at the reporting date.

16. Share Capital
U P | aorowe)| o7 (es)]

1 Authorized Capital

500,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs 100 each 5,000,000,000 5,000,000,000
Issued Capital

3,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs 100 each 4,000,000,000 3,000,000,000
Subscribed Capital

.................. Equity Shares of Rs 100 each
Paidup Capital
16560795 Equity Shares of Rs 100 each 3,007,440,535 1,656,079,588

Less Calls in Arears

Total Paid Up Capital 3,007,440,535 1,656,079,588
Changes in Share Capital
1 Opening Share Capital 1,656,079,588 1,324,863,670
Add: Bonus Shares Issued 357,713,194 331,215,918
Add: Right Shares Issued 993,647,753
Closing Share Capital 3,007,440,535 1,656,079,588

Share Owership

2075/76 (Rs.) 2074/75 (Rs.)

Share holder No. of % of | No. of Ordinary % of
Ordinary Share ownershlp Share ownershlp

Nepalese Companies (Rastriya Banijya 3,061,137 1,685,648
5y  Bank)
E Nepalese Citizen 16,434,715 53 8,917,363 53
£ International 401,426 2 353,679 2
Total 19,897,278 65 10,956,689 65
Public 10,177,127 35 5,604,106 35

Other ( Details Required) - - - _
Total 30,074,405 100 16,560,795 100

{5
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List of Shareholders Holding More Than 1% Of Share Capital

2075/76 (Rs.) 2074/75 (Rs.)

Siddheshwor Kumar Singh 10.50 315,919,600.00 11.75 194,623,500.00

2 Rastriya Banijya Bank 10.18 306,113,700.00 10.18 168,564,800.00
3 Nepal Investment Bank Ltd. 5.73 172,441,700.00 573 94,956,800.00
4 Rana Bahadur Shah 5.33 160,394,400.00 533 88,322,900.00
5 RitaMalla 3.94 118,371,600.00 3.14 51,919,700.00
6 Prema Rajya Laxmi Singh 2.53 76,163,700.00 2.82 46,690,300.00
7 Ishwari Prasad Rimal 2.23  67,144,800.00 2.23 36,974,000.00
8 Sleekquote Ltd. 133 40,142,600.00 2.14 35,367,900.00
9 Rajeev Bikram Shah 1.53  45,917,000.00 1.53 25,284,600.00
10 Bharati Gurung 1.19  35,689,200.00 1.36 22,573,200.00
11 Bharat Bahadur Basnet 1.14  34,357,100.00 1.14 18,921,000.00
12 Prudential Capital Management Co. Pvt. - - 1.09 18,094,600.00

Ltd

17. Share Premium

1 Asat 1Shrawan 37,033,520 37,033,520
2 Add: Premiums on shares for the year 150,815,198 0
3 less: Transferred to Bonus Share payable (10,000,000) 0

Total Retained Earnings 177,848,718 37,033,520

18. Retained Earnings

As at 1 Shrawan 804,688,693 377,593,997
2 Profit for the year 380,380,860 511,281,492
3 Provisions written back ( Provision for loss on investment) 0 0
4 Transfer from Deffered Tax Reserve Fund 0 0
5 Profit Share of Associate 0 0
6 Transferred to Catastrophe Reserve (35,109,110) (47,423,901)
7 Issuance of Bonus Shares (347,713,194) 0
8 Cash Dividend 0 0
9 Transferred to Regulatory Reserve (29,194,096) (36,762,894)

Total Retained Earnings 773,053,153 804,688,693

QS
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19. Catastrophe Reserve

1 Opening Balance 183,311,022 135,887,121
2 Transferred from Retained Earnings 35,109,110 47,423,901
Closing Balance 218,420,132 183,311,022

20. Other Reserves

S 7] T2

Opening Reserves 144,898,932 164,643,160
2 Deffered Tax reserve fund 0 0
3 OCI- Fair Value Reserve 23,440,108 (476,094,839)
4 Rent Equilization Reserve (3,519,503) (8,897,638)
5 Acturial Gain or Loss 0 0
6 Regulatory Reserve 29,194,096 36,762,894
7 Total 194,013,633 (283,586,424)
8 Less: Transferred to Retained Earnings 0 0
9 Less: Transferred to Insurance Contract Liabilities (21,096,097) 428,485,355

Total 172,917,535 144,898,932

Catastrophe Reserve: It is a mandatory statutory reserve in which 10% of profits as per Old GAAP is transferred every year. The
same has been provided for as per the ciricular dated 2075/09/12 issued by beema samiti.

Deffered Tax Reseerve Fund: The deffered yax reserve fund was mandated by the old GAAP and as the same is not required as

per NFRS, the same is transferred to retained earnings.

OCI-Fair Value Reserve: It is an unrealised reserve created for the change in fair value of the held for sale financial assets that

have been measured at fair value through OCI.

Rent Equilization Reserve: It is reserve created for equilizing the rentals over the period of the lease. The lease rentals are not

constant and there is an escalation in the lease rentals.
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22. Unrealised Gains Reserve

SN Particulars 2075/76 (Rs.) 2074/75 (Rs.)
Opening 539,077,171 289,673,220

1 Profit on share of Associate 91,096,405 111,423,597

2 FairValue Gains and Losses on Investment Property 60,311,800 137,980,354
Total 690,485,376 539,077,171

23. Financial Liabilities

Payables to Agents 139,108,327 111,089,880

2 Premium Suspense 9,593,117 7,571,620
3 Sundry Creditors 330,880,325 248,978,865
4 Withheld Tax 85,227,375 86,283,362
5 Auditors Remuneration and Expenses 1,094,278 2,047,022
6 Service Fee Payable 80,837,382 64,906,652
7 Dividend Payable 9,713,706 9,926,545
8 Foreign Exchange Fluctuation 8,342 8,342
9 Re-insurance Payables (5,764,255) 33,580,490
10 Loan against Government Bonds 0 0
Total Trade and Other Paybles 650,698,597 564,384,435

The carrying amounts disclosed above reasonably approximate fair value at the reporting date and are payable within one year.

24. Other Liabilities

SN Particulars 2075/76 (Rs.) 2074/75 (Rs.)
1 Payable to Employees 7,978,766 4,264,401
2 Bonus Payable to Employees 82,256,839 74,052,303
3 Defined benefit obligation 78,543,142 87,833,209
4 Retention and Deposits 16,631,922 16,187,322
5 Premium Deposits 10,166,351 10,166,351
6 Outstanding liabilities relating to non-life transaction 766,080 766,080
7 Payable to Other Insurers 1,775,237 -
Total Other Liabilities 198,118,337 193,269,666

25. Deferred Tax
SN Particulars 2075/76 (Rs.) 2074/75 (Rs.)
1 Deferred Tax liability-OCI 332,336,445 334,096,829
2 Deferred Tax liability- SOPL 14,972,037 5,159,661
Total 347,308,481 339,256,490
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26. Provisions

Provision at the end of the year | Provision at the end of the
2075/76 year 2074/75

Provision - Premium Income not deposited into bank 568,387 568,387
3 Other Provision - Claim payable not due 54,225,757 54,247,602
4 Other provision - Non life claim outstanding 2,387,264 2,387,264
Total 57,181,408 57,203,252

27. Net Premiums

(A) Gross and net premiums of insurance contracts

1 Life Insurance 8,050,523,540 6,447,635,019
Total Gross Premiums 8,050,523,540 6,447,635,019

<3
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28. Fees and Commission

Reinsurance Commission Income 34,573,123 27,077,582
2 Late Fee 56,199,450 33,930,806
Total Fees and Commission Income 90,772,573 61,008,388

Reinsurance Commission Income is based on premium ceded during the year.

29. Investment Income

Financial Investment at amortized cost

Interest income from Government Securities 11,513,947 12,307,250

Interest income from term deposits 2,097,419,050 1,635,900,161
2 Financial Investment at FVTOCI

Interest Income from Debentures 127,199,825 54,911,144

Dividend Income 48,245,663 21,370,580
3 Loans to Policyholders

Interest Income 322,016,302 237,681,504
4 Loans to Agents

Interest Income 4,798,637 5,830,765
5 Loans to Employees

Interest Income 2,000,996 1,834,227

Total Investment Income 2,613,194,420 1,969,835,631

The investment income comprise of term deposits and demand deposits. Interest income is recognized in the statement of
profit or loss as it accrues. The rate implicit on the investments, except loans to employees, approximates the effective interest
rates and the same rate is used to calculate the interest income. Loans to employees are either interest free or at concessional
rate. Interest to employees, charged lower than market rate, has been booked as income and expensed in personnel cost.

Investment income also includes dividends when the right to receive payment is established.

30. Net Realized Gains and Losses
(SN lparieurs | oo | 07|

1 Gains on AFS financial Assets
Equity Securities
Debt Securities

2 Loss on AFS financial Assets
Equity Securities
Debt Securities

3 Gains on Sale of Fixed Assets 0 33,808

Net Realized Gains/Loss 0 33,808

Realized gains and losses recorded in the statement of profit or loss include gains and losses on financial assets, properties and
equipment. Gains and losses on the sale of investments are calculated as the difference between net sales proceeds and the
original or amortized cost and are recorded on occurrence of the sale transaction.
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31. Other Operating Income

1 Rent from Operating Properties 46,315,853 42,200,424
2 Foreign Exchange income 45 5,087
3 Miscellaneous Income 372,449 282,409

Total Other Operating Income 46,688,347 42,487,920

Part of the corporate building is rented to third parties. Rental income from rented part is equalized over the lease period.

32. Net Benefits and Claims

(S Lpariculars 2075776 () | 2074775 Rs)

1 Life Insurance Contracts

Death Claim 330,501,087 378,650,188
Maturity 1,342,553,557 1,185,963,606
Anticipated 535,807,750 157,957,158
Others claims 379,900,705 262,397,246
Surrender Value 99,944,197 67,774,522
2 Total Claims Ceded to Re-insurers

Change in Life Insurance Contracts Liabilities 138,488,945 173,107,651
Change in Investment Contracts Liabilities

Total Net Benefits and Claims 2,550,218,351 1,879,635,069

Gross benefits and claims for life insurance contracts include the cost of all claims arising during the year, external claims handling
costs that are directly related to the processing and settlement of claims and policyholder bonuses declared on contracts.
Changes in the gross valuation of insurance contract liabilities are also included. Death claims and surrenders are recorded on the
basis of notifications received. Maturities and annuity payments are recorded when due.

Reinsurance claims

Reinsurance claims are recognized when the related gross insurance claim is recognized according to the terms of the relevant contract.

33. Acquisition Related Expenses

(SN [porculrs 2075176 ()| 2074175 Ra)

1 Agent Commission 840,424,662 608,796,242
2 Medical Expenses 7,495,179 5,170,336
3 Stamp 2,692,935 3,977,282
4 Others - -

Total Acquisition Related Expenses 850,612,776 617,943,860

34. Service Fees

Type of Insurance Total Service Fee Re-insurer’s share Service Fee (Net)
Policies in Gross Service Fee

2075/76 (Rs.) | 2074/75 (Rs.) | 2075/76 (Rs.) | 2074/75Rs.) | 2075/76 Rs.) | 2074/75 Rs.)

1  Endowment Life 36,962,163 28,455,776 311,564 174,211 36,650,598 28,281,565
Insurance Policy

2 Anticipated Endowment 21,760,889 16,044,351 462,882 251,709 21,298,007 15,792,642
Life Insurance Policy

5 Participative Endowment 16,559,876 13,117,876 220,029 110,995 16,339,847 13,006,881
& whole life Policy

3 Term Life Policy 4,121,042 5,932,068 873,033 2,146,688 3,248,009 3,785,380

4 Special Term Life Policy 1,101,266 926,279 30,905 939 1,070,361 925,340

Total 80,505,235 64,476,350 1,898,413 2,684,543 78,606,822 61,791,808

Service fees are fees paid to Beema Samiti (regulating authority for insurance companies in Nepal). The fee is 1% of net premium.

<&



35. Administrative Expenses

[SN_Particulars | 207576(Rs)| __________2074/75Rs)]

1 Employee Benefit Expenses 251,299,431 243,308,984
2 Rent 19,891,748 16,002,205
3 Water and Electricity 3,729,569 3,133,114
4 Repairs and Maintenance 4,742,702 5,465,981
5 Communication 9,039,396 9,052,586
6 Printing and Stationery 17,127,834 16,490,343
7 Office Expenses 6,829,756 3,957,506
8 Conveyance 185,675 27,330
9 Traveling Expenses 3,511,908 1,561,069
10 Staff Recruitment Expenses - 83,075
1 Agent Training 13,604,232 15,003,915
12 Agent Others 363,202,178 249,068,235
13 Insurance Premium 4,371,029 1,669,474
14 Security Expenses 1,130,557 921,540
15 Legal Expenses 667,195 1,533,192
16 Books, Magazines and Periodicals 147,700 127,150
17 Advertisement and Publicity 12,563,562 8,354,301
18 Business Promotions 9,818,698 6,654,916
19 Entertainments 2,967,577 544,627
20 Donations and Gifts 877,108 658,514
21 Board Meeting Expenses 1,281,328 1,829,346
22 Other Committee Expenses 247,915 264,300
23 Annual General Meeting Expenses 979,271 1,200,098
24 Actuary Fee and Expenses 1,240,000 837,176
26 Bank Charge 873,328 757,194
29 Internal Audit Fee & Related Expenses 875,324 802,166
30 Postage and Courier expenses 2,328,386 1,771,335
31 Rates, Taxes and Fees 163,620 2,424,698
32 Fuel 5,950,577 4,476,493
33 Other Expenses 2,496,927 9,820,119
34 Impairment Loss on Reinsurance Assets - -
35 Impairment Loss on Loans and Receivables - 2,370,624
36 Impairment Loss on Held for sale financial Assets - 373,100
37 Impairment Loss on Property and Equipment 92,718 279,593
38 Investment Property Related Expenses - -
39 Deferred Expenses - -
40 Share related expenses 5,295,713 3,684,718
41 Ammortization of Investments 980,943 980,943
42 Auditors Remuneration and Expenses 890,240 890,240

Statutory Audit Fees 480,250

Tax Audit Fees 149,865

Long Form Audit Report Fees 20,000

Special Purpose Financials 240,125
43 Net Foreign Exchange Adjustments - -
44 Other Expenses - -
45 NFRS Consultation 169,500 339,000

Total Administrative Expenses 749,573,644 616,719,199

Rent expense is equalized over the lease periods.
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35. Retirement Benefit Obligation
Particulars

Expenses Recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss

As at
32nd Asadh 2076

Leave

Gratuity
(Funded)

As at

32nd Asadh 2075

Leave Gratuity
(Funded)

Current Service Cost 1919071 11050790 708852 10647727

Interest cost 1657559 3612434 1267555 2690690

Expected Return on Plan Assets

Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss 3,418,091 7,172,487

Past Service Cost

Expenses recognized in the Profit & Loss A/c 3,576,630 14,663,224 9,148,894 13,338,417

Expenses Recognized In Other Comprehensive Income

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligation For the Period 10,804,969  -30,347,019 15,923,346

Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income 0 (600,993) -899,368
Net (Income)/Expense For the Period Recognized in OClI 10,804,969 (30,948,012) 15,023,978

Change in the Present Value of Projected Benefit Obligation

Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the Beginning of the 27,625,975 93,704,009 21,125,918 66,333,150

Period

Interest Cost 1,657,559 5,622,241 1,267,555 3,979,989

Current Service Cost 1,919,071 11,050,790 708,852 10,647,727

(Benefit Paid From the Fund) (1,714,118) (3,180,203)

Benefits paid by the employer 0 (2,648,837)

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Experience 3,418,091 (30,347,019) 7,172,487 15,923,346

Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the End of the Period 34,620,696 78,315,903 27,625,975 93,704,009

Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the Beginning of the Period 33,496,775 21,488,311

Interest Income 2,009,807 1,289,299

Contributions by the Employer 0 13,000,000

(Benefit Paid from the Fund) (1,714,118) (3,180,203)

Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income 600,993 899,368

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the End of the Period 34,393,457 33,496,775

Amount Recognized in SOFP

(Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the end of the Period) (34,620,696) 78,315,903 (27,625,975) (93,704,009)

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the Period 34,393,457 33,496,775

Funded Status (Surplus/ (Deficit)) (34,620,696) (43,922,446) (27,625,975) (60,207,234)

Net (Liability)/Asset Recognized in the Balance Sheet (34,620,696) (43,922,446) (27,625,975) (60,207,234)
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Actuarial Assumptions

Discount rate 6% 6%
Salary escalation rate 12.21% 12.21%
Rate of Employee Turnover 6.48% 6.48%
Mortality Rate During Employment NepaliAsaured LivesMortalfty - Nepal Assured Lives
Sensitivity Analysis

Projected Benefit Obligation on Current Assumptions 93,704,009 66,333,150
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Discounting (7,614,895) (6,404,360)
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Discounting 9,020,918 7,632,279
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase 8,398,515 7,104,216
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase (7,285,513) (6,128,116)
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover (3,407,664) (2,941,801)
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover 3,888,586 3,370,411

The sensitivity analysis have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at
the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant. The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be
representative of the actual change in the projected benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur
in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated. Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis,
the present value of the projected benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the
reporting period, which is the same method as applied in calculating the projected benefit obligation as recognised in the balance
sheet. There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

Qualitative Disclosures

Para 139 (a) Characteristics of defined benefit plan. The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan in Nepal (funded). The
company'’s defined benefit gratuity plan is a final salary plan for employees, which requires contributions to be made to a separately
administered fund. The fund is managed by a trust which is governed by the Board of Trustees. The Board of Trustees are responsible
for the administration of the plan assets and for the definition of the investment strategy.

Para 139 (b) Risks associated with defined benefit plan Gratuity is a defined benefit plan and company is exposed to the Following Risks:
Interest rate risk: A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the G.Sec. Rate will increase the present value of the liability requiring higher
provision. A fall in the discount rate generally increases the mark to market value of the assets depending on the duration of asset.

Salary Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of members. As
such, an increase in the salary of the members more than assumed level will increase the plan’s liability.

Investment Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference to
market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. If the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit.
Currently, for the plan in Nepal, it has a relatively balanced mix of investments in government securities, and other debt instruments.

Asset Liability Matching Risk: The plan faces the ALM risk as to the matching cash flow. Since the plan is invested in lines of
Income Tax Rules, this generally reduces ALM risk.

Mortality risk: Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and payable till retirement age only, plan does not have
any longevity risk.

Concentration Risk: Plan is having a concentration risk as all the assets are invested with the insurance company and a default will
wipe out all the assets. Although probability of this is very less as insurance companies have to follow regulatory guidelines.

Para 139 (c) Characteristics of defined benefit plans During the year, there were no plan amendments, curtailments and settlements.

Para 147 (a)A separate trust fund is created to manage the Gratuity plan and the contributions towards the trust fund is done as
guided by Income Tax Rules.

®
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35A: Employee Benefit Expenses

SN | Particulars 2075/76 (Rs.) 2074/75 (Rs.)
1 Salary 77,637,002 69,909,209
2 Other Allowance 94,881,685 81,432,655
3 Dashain Allowance 5,688,665 4,920,795
4 Providend Fund 5,888,710 4,763,264
5 Training Expenses 1,072,015 768,080
6 Uniform Expenses 242,498 248,854
7 Staff Insurance Expenses 5,110,730 20,043
8 Gratuity & Pension 14,663,224 13,359,767
9 Leave Encashment 3,576,630 13,771,972

10 Staff Refreshment Expenses 4,744,946 4,169,516
11 Employee Bonus 37,793,326 48,533,393
12 Amortization of Deferred Employee Expenses - 1,411,436

Total Personnel Cost 251,299,431 243,308,984

36 . Finance Cost

Finance cost represents borrowing cost of short-term borrowing. There is no outstanding borrowing at the end of financial year.

37. Income Tax

The major components of income tax expense for the year are as below.

NOTE 37 A: INCOME TAX - STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

SN Particulars 2075/76 (Rs.) 2074/75 (Rs.)

1 CurrentTax 237,342,245.00 174,736,470.55

Income Tax 247,087,019.00 186,188,253.30

Prior Year Adjustment (9,744,774.00) (11,451,782.75)

2 Deferred Tax 9,812,375.54 7,804,432.80

3 Total Income tax Expense 247,154,620.54 182,540,903.35
4 Income Tax Expense Realting to Policyholders

5 Income Tax Expense Realting to Shareholders

A deferred tax liability has not been recognized in respect of the investment in the associate. The Company has determined
that the undistributed profits of its associate will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

NOTE 37B: INCOME TAX - OCI

Particulars 2075/76 (Rs.) 2074/75 (Rs.)
1 Current Tax

Deferred Tax 1,760,384 145,950,744

Total Tax Charge to OCI 1,760,384 145,950,744

Tax Change Realting to Policyholders

v MW N

Tax Change Realting to Shareholders

Deferred Tax recognized is on account of unrealized gains on investments.
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NOTE 37C: RECONCILIATION OF TAX CHARGE
SN Particulars 2075/76 (Rs.) 2074/75 (Rs.)

1 Profit Before Tax 627,535,480.46

693,822,395.12

2 Tax at statutory income tax rate of 25%

156,883,870.11

173,455,598.78

Non Taxable Income and Expense

Premium (1,965,170,549.75)  (1,544,795,189.18)
Fair Value gains and losses (1,675,327.78) (3,832,787.60)
Share of profit of an associate (2,530,455.70) (3,095,099.92)
Dividend income (12,061,415.75) (5,342,645.00)
Net Claim benefits 637,554,587.75 469,908,767.19

Rent Equilization Income

Changes in Insurance Contract Liabilities

(2,351,384.52)
1,436,009,755.30

(2,261,398.00)
1,093,568,732.26

Rent Equilization Expense 1,471,508.65 36,988.50
Interest Income from Employees (238,053.97) 0.00
Taxable Income and Expense

Income from Gratuity with CIT 652,699.75 354,692.27
Disallowed Expense

Donation and gifts 219,277.00 164,628.50
Leave encashment 894,157.50 3,442,993.00
Gratuity 3,665,806.00 3,339,941.75
Impairment Loss on Loans and Receivables 0.00 592,656.00
Impairment Loss on Held for sale financial Assets 0.00 93,275.00
Impairment Loss on Property and Equipment 23,179.43 69,898.25
Depreciation 5,199,466.48 6,855,780.57
Fine and Penalty 120,057.50 2,092,198.51
Repair and Maintenance Capitalized 36,401.75 251,944.25
Ammortization of Investments 245,235.75 245,235.75

Allowed expenses
Depreciation
Leave Encashment

Gratuity

(12,346,961.00)
(1,846,719.50)
(428,529.50)

(6,339,591.00)
(1,817,978.75)
(800,388.25)

Total Tax Charge for the year

247,087,018.75

186,188,252.88




l?ﬂurm

ATEH TATT BT (ATHde

aiftis ufddgar 2009/008

R

NOTE 37D: DEFERRED TAX-SOPL

SN Particulars 2075/76 (Rs.) 2074/75 (Rs.)
1 FairValue gains and Losses 1,675,327.78 3,832,787.60
2 Rent Equalization, net 3,519,503.49 8,897,638.28
4 Employee Benefit Expenses (2,284,714.50) (4,164,567.76)
5 Impairment loss on loans and receivables 0.00 0.00
6 Impairment loss on Equipment 0.00 0.00
7 Amortization of investments (245,235.75) (245,235.75)
8 Depreciation 7,147,494.53 (516,189.57)

At 31 Ashadh 9,812,375.54 7,804,432.80

NOTE 37E: RECONCILIATION OF DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES, NET

SN Particulars 2075/76 (Rs.) 2074/75 (Rs.)

As at 1 Shrawan 339,256,490 477,402,802
1 Amounts recorded in the statement of profit or loss 9,812,376 7,804,433
2 Amounts recorded in the statement of OCl (1,760,384) (145,950,744)
3 Foreign Exchange Adjustments 0 0
4 At31Ashadh 347,308,481 339,256,490

38. Dividends Paid and Proposed

Dividends payable to the shareholders are capitalized in the year the AGM approves the dividends proposed by the board.

Proposed dividend for F.Y. 2075-76
The Board of Directors in its 436th meeting dated 14.08.2020 has proposed the following dividends for the F.Y. 2075-76

Bonus Shares 308,262,655 75,186,013
Cash Dividend 16,224,351 364,850,023

39. Earnings per share

The foIIowing reflects the profit and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations

Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders for basic and diluted 380,380,860 511,281,492
earnings
2 Weighted average number of equity shares for basic EPS 30,074,405 16,560,796
3 Effect of Dilution 751,860 13,513,609
4 Share Options 0 0
5 Weighted average number of equity shares adjusted for the effect of 30,826,265 30,074,405
dilution
Basic earnings per ordinary shares 12.65 30.87
7 Diluted earnings per ordinary shares 12.34 17.00
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Basic earnings per share (EPS) amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year, plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would
be issued on the conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

There have been no other transactions involving ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares between the reporting date and the
date of authorization of these financial statements.

40 Risk Management framework

40.1 Governance framework

The primary objective of the Company'’s risk and financial management framework is to protect the Company’s shareholders from
events that obstruct the sustainable achievement of financial performance objectives, including failing to exploit opportunities.
Key management recognizes the critical importance of having efficient and effective risk management systems in place.

The Board of Directors establishes policies for governance and oversight. In addition to the Board of Directors there are following
committees to discharge related functions.

Audit Committee:
The audit committee of the company is responsible for monitoring the internal control budgeting and internal audit of the company.
The committee consists of three members under the leadership of the public director.

Investment, risk management and solvency Committee:

The Investment, risk management and solvency committee is responsible for assessing the risk related to all functions of the
company. The committee is also responsible for monitoring the investments made by the company and assessing the solvency
situation of the company as well.

Human Resource Committee:
The Human Resource Committee is responsible for monitoring all human resource related functions such as promotion, recruitment,
disciplinary actions, salary increments etc.

Anti-money laundering Committee:
The committee is responsible for assuring that the company complies with the anti-money laundering directives issued by Beema
Samiti and Nepal Rastra Bank.

Claim payment and reinsurance committee:
The committee is responsible for ensuring that all genuine claims are paid by the company swiftly to the claimants and the company
doesn't retain more risk than it should through proper reinsurance treaties.

This is supplemented with a clear organizational structure with documented delegated authorities and responsibilities from the
board of directors to the committees and senior managers. These policies ensure the appropriate quality and diversification of
assets, align underwriting and reinsurance strategy to the corporate goals, and specify reporting requirements.

40.2 Capital management objectives, policies and approach

The Company has established the following capital management objectives, policies and approach to managing the risks that

affect its capital position:

» To maintain the required level of stability of the Company thereby providing a degree of security to policyholders

» To allocate capital efficiently and support the development of business by ensuring that returns on capital employed meet the
requirements of its capital providers and shareholders.

» To retain financial flexibility by maintaining strong liquidity and access to a range of capital markets.

» To align the profile of assets and liabilities taking account of risks inherent in the business.

» To maintain financial strength to support new business growth and to satisfy the requirements of the policyholders, regulators
and stakeholders

93
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» To maintain strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business objectives and maximize shareholders value.
The operations of the Company are also subject to regulatory requirements of Nepal. Such regulations not only prescribe approval
and monitoring of activities, but also impose certain restrictive provisions (e.g., capital adequacy) to minimize the risk of default and
insolvency on the part of the insurance companies to meet unforeseen liabilities as they arise.

The Company has met all of these requirements throughout the financial year.

In reporting financial strength, capital and solvency are measured using the rules prescribed by the Beema Samiti (Regulating
agency for insurance Companies in Nepal). These regulatory capital tests are based upon required levels of solvency, capital and a
series of prudent assumptions in respect of the type of business written.

The Company’s capital management policy for its business is to hold sufficient capital to cover the statutory requirements based on
the Beema Samiti directives, including any additional amounts required by the regulator.

Approach to Capital Management
The Company seeks to optimize the structure and sources of capital to ensure that it consistently maximizes returns to the
shareholders and policyholders.

The Company’s approach to managing capital involves managing assets, liabilities and risks in a coordinated way, assessing
shortfalls between reported and required capital levels on a regular basis and taking appropriate actions to influence the capital
position of the Company in the light of changes in economic conditions and risk characteristics.

The primary source of capital used by the Company is total equity and reserves. The Company also utilizes, where it is efficient to do
so, sources of capital such as reinsurance and securitization, in addition to more traditional sources of funding.

The Company has made no significant changes, from previous years, to its policies and processes for its capital structure.

Available capital resources at the end of financial years

Total Equity 4,546,775,523 2,826,005,853
Borrowings 0 0

Total shareholders fund as per financial statements 4,546,775,523 2,826,005,853
Adjustments onto a regulatory basis 1,023,440,636 164,026,272
Available Capital 3,523,334,887 2,661,985,482

The adjustments onto a regulatory basis represent assets inadmissible for regulatory reporting purposes.

40.3 Regulatory Framework

Regulators are primarily interested in protecting the rights of policyholders and monitor them closely to ensure that the Company
is satisfactorily managing affairs for their benefit. At the same time, regulators are also interested in ensuring that the Company
maintains an appropriate solvency position to meet unforeseen liabilities arising from economic shocks or natural disasters.

The operations of the Company are subject to regulatory requirements of Nepal. Such regulations not only prescribe approval and
monitoring of activities, but also impose certain restrictive provisions (e.g., capital adequacy) to minimize the risk of default and
insolvency on the part of insurance companies to meet unforeseen liabilities as these arise.

40.4 Assets liabilities management framework

Financial risks arise from open positions in interest rate, currency and equity products, all of which are exposed to general and
specific market movements. The main risk that the Company faces, due to the nature of its investments and liabilities, is interest rate
risk. The Company manages these positions within an ALM framework that has been developed to achieve long-term investment
returns in excess of its obligations under insurance contracts. The principal technique of the Company’s ALM is to match assets to
the liabilities arising from insurance contracts. The Company’s ALM is an integral part of the insurance risk management policy, to
ensure in each period sufficient cash flow is available to meet liabilities arising from insurance contracts.
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41. Insurance and Financial risk

The principal risk the Company faces under insurance contracts is that the actual claims and benefit payments or the timing
thereof, differ from expectations. This is influenced by the frequency of claims, severity of claims, actual benefits paid. Therefore,
the objective of the Company is to ensure that sufficient reserves are available to cover these liabilities.

The risk exposure is mitigated by diversification across a large portfolio of insurance contracts and geographical areas. The
variability of risks is also improved by careful selection and implementation of underwriting strategy guidelines, as well as the use
of reinsurance arrangements.

The Company has executed reinsurance agreement with Handover Re, Malaysia and Nepal Re as part of its risks mitigation program.
Reinsurance ceded is placed on both a proportional and non-proportional basis. The majority of proportional reinsurance is quota-
share reinsurance which is taken out to reduce the overall exposure of the Company. Non-proportional reinsurance is primarily
excess—of-loss reinsurance designed to mitigate the group’s net exposure to catastrophe losses.

Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with the outstanding claims provision and are in
accordance with the reinsurance contracts. Although the Company has reinsurance arrangements, it is not relieved of its direct
obligations to its policyholders and thus a credit exposure exists with respect to ceded insurance, to the extent that any reinsurer is
unable to meet its obligations assumed under such reinsurance agreement.

Life Insurance Contracts
Life insurance contracts offered by the Company include: endowment life insurance policy, anticipated endowment life insurance
policy, participative endowment & whole life policy, term life policy and special term life policy.

Endowment policy is a life insurance contract designed to pay a lump sum after a specific term (on its ‘maturity’) or on death. Whole
life and term assurance are conventional regular premium products when lump sum benefits are payable on death or permanent
disability. Few contracts have a surrender value. Some contracts are participatory and some are non-participatory.

The main risks that the Company is exposed to are as follows:

» Mortality risk - risk of loss arising due to policyholder death experience being different than expected.

» Investment return risk - risk of loss arising from actual returns being different than expected

» Expense risk - risk of loss arising from expense experience being different than expected

» Policyholder decision risk — risk of loss arising due to policyholder experiences (lapses and surrenders) being different than
expected.

These risks do not vary significantly in relation to the location of the risk insured by the Company or type of risk insured. There is
no standalone product in the Company’s portfolio with morbidity and longevity risks. Hence, the Company is not exposed to these
risks

The Company’s underwriting process is designed to evaluate risks in accepting application of insurance. This is largely achieved
the use of medical screening in order to ensure that pricing takes account of current health conditions and family medical history,
regular review of actual claims experience and product pricing, as well as detailed claims’ handling procedures. Underwriting
limits are in place to enforce appropriate risk selection criteria. For example, the Company has the right to reject the payment of
fraudulent claims.

For contracts for which death or disability is the insured risk, the significant factors that could increase the overall frequency of
claims are epidemics, widespread changes in lifestyle and natural disasters, resulting in earlier or more claims than expected.
Reinsurance limits for catastrophe is as under:

Warranted minimum No. of persons 50

Maximum liability of the reinsurer in any one event | NPR 85,00,00,000
Maximum Annual Liability of Reinsurer NPR 85,00,00,000
Catastrophe retention of the ceding company NPR 1,00,00,000
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The insurance risk described above is also affected by the contract holder’s right to pay no future premiums, to terminate the
contract completely or to surrender the policy. As a result, the amount of insurance risk is also subject to contract holder behavior.

The following tables show the concentration of life insurance contract liabilities by type of contract.

41.1 Risk assumed
Sum assured as of the end of 16th July 2019 is as follows:

Type
Sum Assured with Bonus Sum Assured without Bonus Total Insurance Liabilities

Individual Plans 127,014,016.17 104,202,157.86 20,889,365.31
Group Plans 20,328,711.44 19,710,030.81 1,336,299.67
Total 147,342,727.62 123,912,188.67 22,225,664.98

The company has ensured satisfactory reinsurance arrangements.

41.2 Key Assumptions
The key assumptions to which the estimation of liabilities is particularly sensitive are, as follows:

41.2.1 Mortality rates
Assumptions are based on 100% of NALM (Nepal Assured Lives Mortality) 2009 Tables based on the observed mortality of Nepalese
lives up till September 2009. Use of this table is mandatory under directives of Beema Samiti.

An increase in rates will lead to a larger number of claims (and claims could occur sooner than anticipated), which will increase the
expenditure and reduce profits for the shareholders.

41.2.2 Investment Return
Investment return is based on the historical and current returns earned by the Company, as well as the expected outlook for the
future, subject to maximum of 6% as prescribed by Beema Samiti.

An increase in investment return would lead to an increase in profits for the shareholders.

41.2.4 Expenses
The expense assumptions reflect the projected costs of maintaining and servicing in—force policies and associated overhead
expenses. The current level of expenses is taken as the expense base, and expense inflation of 4% per annum is assumed in the cash
flow projections.

An increase in the level of expenses would result in an increase in expenditure, thereby reducing profits for the shareholders

41.2.5 Lapse and surrender rates
Lapses relate to the termination of policies due to non—-payment of premiums. Surrenders relate to the voluntary termination of
policies by policyholders. Policy termination assumptions are not considered.

An increase in lapse rates early in the life of the policy would tend to reduce profits for shareholders, but later increases are broadly
neutral in effect.

41.2.6 Discount rate

Life insurance liabilities are determined as the sum of the discounted value of the expected benefits and future administration
expenses directly related to the contract, less the discounted value of the expected theoretical premiums that would be required
to meet these future cash outflows. Discount rate is equal to rate adopted for investment return.

A decrease in the discount rate will increase the value of the insurance liability and therefore reduce profits for the shareholders.
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The assumptions that have the greatest effect on the statement of financial position and statement of profit or loss of the Company
are listed below:

Assumptions 2018/19  2017/18

Mortality 100% 100%

Investment return rate 6% 6%

Discount rate 6% 6%

Expense inflation rate 4% 4%
41.3 Sensitivities

The following analysis is performed for reasonably possible movements in key assumptions with all other assumptions held
constant, showing the impact on gross and net liabilities, profit before tax and equity. The correlation of assumptions will have
a significant effect in determining the ultimate claims liabilities, but to demonstrate the impact due to changes in assumptions,
assumptions had to be changed on an individual basis. It should be noted that movements in these assumptions are non-linear.
Sensitivity information will also vary according to the current economic assumptions, mainly due to the impact of changes to both
the intrinsic cost and time value of options and guarantees. When options and guarantees exist, they are the main reason for the
asymmetry of sensitivities.

41.3 : Sensitivities Table

1 2 3
Discount rate - Base 23,432,125,923
Discount rate - Base + 1% 20,889,134,876
Discount rate - Base -1% 27,413,078,758
Solvency Ratio - based on discount rate - base 245%
Solvency Ratio - based on discount rate - base + 1% 414%
Solvency Ratio - based on discount rate - base - 1% -20%
Mortality Rate - Base 23,432,125,923
Mortality Rate - 150% of Base 24,415,581,390
Mortality Rate - 50% of Base 22,622,043,080
Solvency Ratio - Mortality rate - Base 245%
Solvency Ratio - Mortality rate - 150% of Base 180%
Solvency Ratio - Mortality rate - 50% of Base 299%

41.4 Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss to the other party by failing to discharge an
obligation.

The following policies and procedures are in place to mitigate the Company’s exposure to credit risk:

> Net exposure limits are set on the basis of directives of Beema Samiti for each type of investments.

» Reinsurance is placed with counterparty that has a good credit rating. At each reporting date, management performs an
assessment of creditworthiness of reinsurer and updates the reinsurance purchase strategy, ascertaining suitable allowance for
impairment.

» The credit risk in respect of premiums or contributions will only persist during the grace period specified in the policy document,
when the policy is either converted into paid up or terminated. Commission paid to intermediaries is netted off against amounts
receivable from them to reduce the risk of doubtful debts.

» The credit risk on loans to policyholders is not envisaged as the policy is terminated if outstanding amount of loan and interest
equals surrender value of the policy.
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41.4.1 Credit Exposure

The Company’s gross maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the statement of financial position at 16/07/2019 and
2018 is the carrying amounts as presented in Note 26. There is no risk for financial guarantees as the Company has not provided
any guarantee. The maximum risk exposure presented below does not include the exposure that arises in the future as a result of
the changes in values.

The credit risk analysis below is presented in line with how the Company manages the risk. The Company manages its credit risk
exposure based on the carrying value of the financial instruments.

Particulars Banks & Financial | Nepal Government Insurance Policyholders | Hydropower| Government Others
Institutions Companies Institutions

Financial
Investment at 25,281,731,000 186,950,000

Amortised cost

Loans and

receivables at 10,030,000 3,597,610,220 234,958,143
Amortised cost

Financial

Investment at 1,254,421,209 71,895,100 9,891,348 975,055,738 39,298,556
FVTOCI

Other Assets 171,026,209 425,410,228

Cash and Short
term deposit
Total Credit
Risk Exposure

786,223,119

27,503,431,537 186,950,000 71,895,100 4,023,020,448 9,891,348 975,055,738 274,256,699

Particulars Neither Past Due Unlisted Past Due | Past Due but Total
nor impaired Companies but not impaired
impaired
Financial Investment at Amortised cost 25,458,651,000 10,030,000 25,468,681,000
Loans and receivables at Amortised cost 3,834,535,210 8,063,153 3,842,598,363
Financial Investment at FVTOCI 2,300,395,352 50,166,600 2,350,561,952
Other Assets 596,436,437 596,436,437
Cash and Short term deposit 786,223,119 786,223,119
Total 32,976,241,118 50,166,600 18,093,153 33,044,500,871

Impaired financial assets
As at 16/07/2019 there are impaired loans and receivables of Rs.8,063,153.

For assets to be classified as “past due but not impaired” contractual payments must be in arrears for more than 90 days. No collateral
is held as security for any past due or impaired assets.

The Company records impairment allowances for loans and receivables in a separate impairment allowance account. A reconciliation
of the allowance for impairment losses for loans and receivables is, as follows:

As at the Beginning of the year 80,63,153
Charge for the year

Recoveries

Written off during the year

As at the end of the year 8,063,153
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41.5 Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that are
settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. In respect of catastrophic events there is also a liquidity risk associated with the
timing differences between gross cash out-flows and expected reinsurance recoveries.

The following policies and procedures are in place to mitigate the Group’s exposure to liquidity risk:

> A liquidity risk policy which sets out the assessment and determination of what constitutes liquidity risk for the Company.
Compliance with the policy is monitored and exposures and breaches are reported to the Company risk committee. The policy is
regularly reviewed for pertinence and for changes in the risk environment.

» Contingency funding plans are in place, which specify minimum proportions of funds to meet emergency calls as well as
specifying events that would trigger such plans.

» The Group's catastrophe excess—of-loss reinsurance contracts contain clauses permitting the immediate draw down of funds to
meet claim payments should claim events exceed a certain size.

» The Company has facility of short-term borrowings to meet its short-term liquidity problems.

Maturity Profile
The following table summarizes the maturity profile of the financial assets, financial liabilities and insurance contract liabilities of
the Company based on remaining undiscounted contractual obligations, including interest payable and receivable.

For insurance contracts liabilities and reinsurance assets, maturity profiles are determined based on estimated timing of net cash
outflows from the recognized insurance liabilities. Repayments which are subject to notice are treated as if notice were to be given
immediately.

The Company maintains a portfolio of highly marketable and diverse assets that can be easily liquidated in the event of an
unforeseen interruption of cash flow. The Company also has committed lines of credit that it can access to meet liquidity needs.

Carrying Amount Upto 1 year Above 5 years No Maturity date

Investment Properties 796,152,284 796,152,284 796,152,284
Investment In an 322,499,966 322,499,966 322,499,966
Associate

Financial Investment at 25,468,681,000 6,020,950,000 14,099,773,000 5,347,958,000 25,468,681,000
Amortised cost

Loans and receivables 3,842,598,363 50,857,112 3,791,741,251 3,842,598,363
at Amortised cost

Financial Investment at 2,350,561,952 19,482,190 41,055,545 2,290,024,217 2,350,561,952
FVTOCI

Current Tax Assets 443,640,556 443,640,556 443,640,556
Other Assets 596,436,437 596,436,437 596,436,437
Cash and Cash 786,223,119 786,223,119 786,223,119
Equivalents

Total 34,606,793,677 7,473,948,858 14,140,828,545 9,139,699,251 3,852,317,023 34,606,793,677
Insurance Contract 28,433,599,890 28,433,599,890 28,433,599,890
Liabilities

Unrealised Gains 599,388,971 599,388,971 599,388,971
Reserve

Financial Liabilities 650,698,594 650,698,594 650,698,594
Other Liabilities 219,454,688 140,911,546 78,543,142 219,454,688
Provisions 57,181,408 57,181,408 57,181,408
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Carrying Amount Upto 1 year Above 5 years No Maturity date

Total 29,960,323,551 791,610,140 29,168,713,411 0 29,960,323,551
Total Liquidity Gap 4,646,470,126 6,682,338,718 14,140,828,545 (20,029,014,160)  3,852,317,023  4,646,470,126
41.6 Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: foreign exchange rates (currency risk), market interest rates (interest rate risk) and
market prices (price risk).

The Company’s market risk policy sets out the assessment and determination of what constitutes market risk for the Company.
Compliance with the policy is monitored and exposures and breaches are reported to the Company risk committee. The policy is
reviewed regularly for pertinence and for changes in the risk environment.

(i) Currency Risk
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates.

The Company'’s principal transactions are carried out in Nepali Rupees (NPR) and its exposure to foreign exchange risk arises
primarily with respect to Indian Rupees and the US dollar.

The Company’s financial assets including reinsurance assets and liabilities are primarily denominated in the same currencies as
its insurance contract liabilities. This mitigates the foreign currency exchange rate risk for the overseas operations. Thus, the main
foreign exchange risk arises from recognized assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than those in which insurance
contract liabilities are expected to be settled.

The Company'’s asset denominated in foreign currency is a bank balance in US dollar amounting to USD 1887.44 Currency risk in
respect to Indian Rupees may arise for actuarial fee to be paid in Indian Rupees. There is no outstanding payable in Indian Rupees.
In view of immaterial amount, there is no significant concentration of currency risk.

(ii) Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates.

Floating rate instruments expose the Group to cash flow interest risk, whereas fixed interest rate instruments expose the Group to
fair value interest risk.

The Company'’s instruments except call accounts are fixed interest rate instruments. Interest on floating rate instruments is re-
priced at intervals of less than one year. Interest on fixed interest rate instruments is priced at inception of the financial instrument
and is fixed until maturity. The Company mitigates interest rate risks by diversifying portfolios to include a multitude of different
instruments that have varying maturation schedules.

The Company has no significant concentration of interest rate risk
(iii) Equity Price Risk
Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in equity

prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the
individual financial instrument or its issuer, or by factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

The Company’s equity price risk exposure relates to financial assets whose values will fluctuate as a result of changes in market
prices, principally investment in securities.

The Group’s price risk policy requires it to manage such risks by setting and monitoring objectives and constraints on investments,
diversification plans, limits on investments in each sector and market.

The Company has no significant concentration of equity price risk.
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The analysis below is performed for reasonably possible movements in market indices with all other variables held constant,
showing the impact on equity (that reflects changes in fair value of AFS financial assets). There are no financial assets and liabilities
whose fair values are recorded in the statement of profit or loss. Hence impact on profit before tax is not analyzed. The correlation
of variables will have a significant effect in determining the ultimate impact on price risk, but to demonstrate the impact due to
changes in variables, variables had to be changed on an individual basis. It should be noted that movements in these variables are
non-linear.

Market Impact on Equity
Change in Variable
Indices 2018/19 2017/18

NEPSE +10% 2,477,776,639 2,461,377,636
NEPSE -10% 2,027,271,795 2,013,854,430
(IV) Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from system failure, human error, fraud or external events. When controls fail to perform,
operational risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory implications or can lead to financial loss. The Company
cannot expect to eliminate all operational risks, but by initiating a rigorous control framework and by monitoring and responding
to potential risks, the Company is able to manage the risks. Controls include effective segregation of duties, access controls,
authorization and reconciliation procedures, staff education and assessment processes, including the use of internal audit. Business
risks such as changes in environment, technology and the industry are monitored through the Company’s strategic planning and
budgeting process.

42. Contingencies and Commitments

a.Legal proceedings and regulations

The Company operates in the insurance industry and is subject to legal proceedings in the normal course of business. While it is not
practicable to forecast or determine the final results of all pending or threatened legal proceedings, management does not believe
that such proceedings (including litigation) will have a material effect on its results and financial position.

The Company is also subject to insurance solvency regulations and has complied with all the solvency regulations. There are no
contingencies associated with the Company’s compliance or lack of compliance with such regulations.

b. Capital Commitments and Operating Leases
The Group has no capital commitments at the reporting date.

The Company has entered into commercial property leases on its property, plant and equipment portfolio, consisting of the Company’s
surplus office buildings. These non-cancellable leases have remaining terms of between five and seven years. All leases include a
clause to enable upward revision of the rental charge on an annual basis according to prevailing market conditions

Future minimum lease rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases as at 16/07/2019 are, as follows:

Within 1 Year 38,898,059 35,361,872
1to 5 years 237,476,540 215,887,764
More than 5 years 21,860,587 78,811,235
Total rent receivable 298,235,186 330,060,871
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43. Segment information

The company offers life insurance. Under life insurance the company offers savings, protection products and other long-term
contracts (both with and without insurance risk and with and without bonus. It comprises a wide range of whole life, term assurance.
Revenue is derived primarily from insurance premiums, fees and commission income, investment income and fair value gains and
losses on investments. For management purposes, the operating segment is organized into business units based on their products
and services and has five reportable operating segments, as follows:

Endowment : This is a with profit plan that makes provisions for the family of the Life Assured in event of his early death and also
assures a lump sum at a desired age on maturity. It costs moderate premiums, has high liquidity and in savings oriented. This plan
is apt for people of all ages and social groups who wish to protect their families from a financial setback that may occur owing to
their demise.

Anticipated: This scheme provides for specific periodic payments of partial survival benefits during the term of the policy itself so
long as the policy holder is alive. It is therefore suitable to meet specified financial requirements needed for occasions like Brata
bandha, Academic Graduations etc. An important feature of plan is that in the event of death at any time within the policy term,
the death claim comprises full sum assured without deducting any of the survival benefit amounts, which have already been paid.
It is also with profit plan.

Whole Life: This plan is a combination of Endowment Assurance and Whole Life with profit plan. It provides financial protection
against death throughout the lifetime of the life assured with the provision of payment of a lump sum at the maturity of the policy
to the assured in case of his survival.

Term: Term life insurance, also known as pure life insurance, is life insurance that guarantees payment of a stated death benefit
during a specified term. Once the term expires, the policyholder can either renew it for another term, convert the policy to
permanent coverage, or allow the policy to terminate.

Special: Special Term insurance is a modified version of term insurance with added benefits

Segment performance is evaluated based on profit or loss and is measured consistently with profit or loss in the consolidated
financial statements. No inter-segment transactions occurred in 2073/74 and 2074/75
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44. Related parties Disclosure

The Company identifies the following as the related parties under requirement NAS 24

Name ___________________|Relationship

Mrs. Prema Rajya Laxmi Singh Chairperson

Mr. Kabiraj Adhikari, Director Key Managerial Personnel
Mr. Rajeev B. Shah,Director Key Managerial Personnel
Lt. Gen. Pawan Bdr. Pande, (Retd.) Director ~ Key Managerial Personnel
Mrs. Bhawani Rana,Director Key Managerial Personnel
Mr. Maheshwor Prakash Shrestha, Director ~ Key Managerial Personnel
Er. Mr. Kuldeep Sharan Singh, Director Key Managerial Personnel
Mr. Bharat Basnet,CEO Key Managerial Personnel

Details of CEQ’s Remuneration:

Basic Salary 35,93,000
Allowances 39,96,000
Total 75,89,000

He is entitled to Bonus, provident fund contributions, leave encashment etc. as per company rules.

44.1 Board Member Allowances and Facilities
The Board of Directors has been paid meeting fees of NPR 9,01,500 during the fiscal year. There were 15 Board Meetings conducted
during the fiscal year. Audit Committee and other committees were paid meeting allowances of NPR 180,000 during the year.

45. Contingencies and Legal Proceedings

Income Tax

The company has a pending case with the Inland Revenue Department for an amount of NPR 50,40,398. The final verdict is still
pending from the court.

Claims and Litigation
A litigation for the construction of building of NPR 1,62,37,078 was still pending in court as of the balance sheet date but the same
has been settled on 01/10/2019 by paying a sum of Rs.11,500,000 through mutual consent.

46. Bonus Rate to policy holders

Declared and Interim Bonus Rate to policy holder for one thousand Sum Assured per annum is as under:

m Tenure of Policy Endowment Policy Endowment and Whole Life Policy
64 64

1 5-14Years
2 15-19Years 64 64
3 20-25 Years 65 65
4 26 years and above 85 85
m Tenure of Policy Money Back Policy
1 5-14Years 63
2 15-19Years 64
3 20 years and above 64

The company has charged interest on late premium payment and loans against insurance policies a per the following:

Interest Rate | Amount Received (Current Year) | Amount Received (Previous Year)

1 Late Premium Payment 10% 56,199,450 33,930,806
2 Loan Against Insurance Policies 10% 322,016,302 237,681,504
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AT T G%el AU § | T AT Fed Ao ATHRTHMAT 0.9 ITTeTdel afg WUl 2@ dqad T6g |

2075/076

156% - 0.02%

10.30%

8.26% 1.65%

® Fire ™ Marine ®Motor * Engineering/ CAR ™ Miscellaneous ™ Cattle & Crop ™ Aviation ™ Micro

Gross Premium

180 166.60

i6o 150.49
136.11

E 121.88
2n 99.38
100 79.92

80 66.48 65.63

=y 61.22
60
a0 25.46
18.18
20 l I

64/65 65/66 66/67 67/68 68/69 69/70 70/71 71/72 72/73 73/74 74/75 75/76
Financial Years

THTEA aTHT G T, AT AR STEAT WETara FRGHebT AN HeTarata qeTHTsr €T a9 aear T aree T
AT B GfCEd TR G | FATE FFIAATE TAATHT GAT a9 S TLATd T 67 qeriard e Geian S 97 s
FEIAIH HETAURT SGHET FROT I ATGT ITeNE® R T T E0ar Jig &7 g |

FEIA T TTAT €.59 FAE 33 ATG TAATHT e @ STThIHT TCPMT THIET T9HT &1 @ 95.4% Ffaemaet gfg 7% €.2%
FAC ¥3 A [H G | T T IS T a1 T &% FUS 9% ARG GZ AHTed A0 TLPAT THEAT T 9. %9
IITLTT g WS & 90 FUS 49 ARG TS WUH G |

FEIIT T ATAT &3 FUAES ¥5 ARG [IATHT HIATT AT TCRMET THIET GUHT A7 AT 9.4 Tiaemae afg w5
E3% FS 10 A TR 3 |

FEAIET GeBET A1) AU FI e HbeeaTe Tithe ST ST S8 U 7+ Gl ACH G | e T a9 & 9
FE 0 AT@ NIRRT FHHTA AT THMT T FUAT F1 AT 909,39 fqeraet gig 98 €3 FAS IR @/@ T
SRR FAE T =AM |

FEIANHN Tl M THHAT (ET Mg g8 T Wbl oaeer g | aufier safaar 3% qur fafqa deemeeare qedt fémaman
YT T SATELHAT FHT q1g g7 a3 |

Amount in Rs. Crores
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AT, R09% /06y T & 1% FUS I} ATG F AN TWHMT AT, 06K /0% AT 5.9 ferde gig 9% & 93 FUS
Y& @@ G & | @ G THAH AU Flge @l aTe YIS ARTAT GHA ghg TUF 7 | FEA AL, 309% /094
AT & 9 FUS 30 ARG T A TR AT, J06 /0% AT /T AT ¥.4¥ Tiaemer qhg 9% & 30 FE 95 @@
ST R TTH G |

Investment and Investment Income

250.00
213.48

196.29

200.00 o
15299 162.15
150.00
9771 107.11
100.00 6928 re0
47.82
50.00 1766 2320 ‘09 0sa [ass 072 o3 [Ro18

64/65 65/66 66/67 67/68 68/69 69/70 70/71 T1/72 72/73 73/74 74/75 75/76
Financial Years

Amount in Rs. Cores

Binvestment M |nvestment Income

qHAd T et ehTer AATITETRT FEOT gideT freara afafy TS gan Gl Wifaerg srewEr S are R
F 9T TARFHATH G EI TH HEIA] a9 JIATA @H g | o0 e & ok FU &% A et qrel qeh
TR FT THHAT THIET FIAT 93,54 Gfq97q ghg 9% & s FUS &3 A 3T RN TUH G | Gl ATAR HFIATH
foTa avT & %3 @IS \¥ A (AR [EET d T AT gR &TEl IRl WO FHIEAT qUAT &1 TEHAT 3R.%0
gfaeae Jg 9 T WY FUE 1 A R G |

Gross Claim Paid

120.00
98.63

100.00 86.64

80.00 eL41

60.00

3 36.94
40.00 27.48 33.88 26.40 23.19
13.72
20.00
1.36 5.19 5.76 . I I
: e = |

64/65 65/66 66/67 67/68 68/69 69/70 7T0/71 71/72 72/73 73/74 74/75 75/76
Financial Years

Amount in Rs. Crores

FFIAIHT T ATAT &% FUS 8O ARG ATTHAT HIH G AUSHT GHIET WA 1 @7 93,93 Fiamael dfg 9% Ty
FE IR A [ a0 G |

FEATH! Tq ATHT & Y& A@ (AT FAT @= TUHMAT THIET THAT G AT 35,44 Taaqer =9 98 & 3¥ @/
AT @9 TUH AU G |

FEIHIH! T ITHT &, & ARG qaT e @9 TUHTHT FHIET TUAT G AT 9.%9 Jiqerder gig 9% & 90 /g T
I G |
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gfg AT G FFOAH AGEATIT GHAT TAT qlg TCH G | FF(AIT (00 aGAT € 9% FAS HTCIIT @ TUHHT FHET
FEAT HT @A 35,33 GOae gfg 9% € %30 HUS TH AT F |

30.00

Management Expenses

25.00

Amountin Rs. Crores

15.00

10.00

5.0

o

20.00

5.76
4.40

11.55 12.01

9.95
842 848 9I57 I I I

16.94

13.08 |

64/65 65/66 66/67 67/68 68/69 69/70 70/71 71/72 72/73 73/74

Financial Years

26.3

19 |

7475 75/76

G AR, A qAT AT

T & FUSAT
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FEHAG! ATIRAT SARIAGRATE HE AHH I TR AU T4, |
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%) #ff 79 TEIER TE, qAF - TASH
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(fufer R0 /05 /9% T TfwTET S qTHD)

M) =i guT THY., TEdE JaE - T gt

AGTOETT IH{TR! SSHAT TieT GoTeleh Uil 5% €.90,000 /- 95 AT Y& T €] TS & | FHET HIH I
i 9 a1 o T ATTeAE (HOT TR AR AT TUSS AT, 064 /00, T &el & ,40,000 /- F&H Il
YT AR TR G |

R, FATAR, aIvel AT, FURNT THE, FFOHHT AT et a1 o afawar aier a1 e @ @ wH,
FIRT AT (A HEAT FFAAATE o THH JFRTST ATH WY &Y H
HAAF, Javg TATD, FEAF THE, FFIAE AERAT T a7 (Aol ANThad! AAER a7 (s FaT Wl FF,
FEIH AT TATGT FEATT FFIAATS B THH RIS AT THTHN ATFT TS |

Ro. HATA®, Jad ATAE, FUFL TH@ TAT TELRLIEEATE HIRTHT TCTHT qICSTHE, 9T qan glasmnt @A ¢
THET TIHT Goeieh BeelTs GAleieh AT qaT A0 FUHTHITERh! TEHAT AT WU IER e TUH 956 ol
SR TRUH 0T G |

. faa=on Lea ]
%) Tefrersh At S5 ST %.9%,2¥,000/-
@) @I FTHIGH T8 AT % 4,410,000/~
) 3T IR AT AT STACAT To T % 330,000/~
=) FHEATH a1 T AT SUMALT Foe HT ¥ §0,000/-
El) A, SgH Saeg qar fafas

ERIAT (W) It aw T ®. R,00000/-
=) EAKE] EaRTan a?ﬁ’ef IUEHRT do% war ®. 40,000/~
) ET TFEH TAT ATAHHE FHATHATT

e guafata aﬁ qar ¥  R0,000/-
) =0 gfafy STafafa Jo wmr %  90,000/-

FEIAIHT THE FAFER ATEadATs GHIAT Fafrar qieatas, 91 qar 97 qfadr a7qd & 43,2%,36% /- IRl T
g | g% Th qEE Aeryerds qar fAanf yiE aeiterietars aien sEfaA qicstae, ST q 9T o e arq
T 9,008,599Y /- THI! TTH F |

39, FoRaEe gfiwfe afe @ AR
R0\ TG HAT TFHAHT SARAAGEA WA ATl Toehl ATHILT 28 THINH Tl G
F) AL, J0%R /90 F S[THIAT [ aTehl asfer : €.99,3%,%93/-
@) ATF. 090 /K FH THIM! A Aol ATA(T : €.99,09 9% /-

REN



l T ATEH AT AT fAfide

aiftis ufddgol 2009/008

9%¥0

GAQEG FFANIeA ThoTatl (s

R

LS

R¥.

M.

THT ¥ S @i ar fafe e e faawor

TG T A Goeld T T T B qEAR GrwEm sEtaar @t ar s o g

THET 9y FHITH TFlg FFIHT 9 AR FIL @R fF=G0T -

T FIOAH qET FEON 2 A SR Gy e fdqfide, SEe, FEHvEl WAl g | HEd BRI
e erafam s veteR fi9 g1 FIUE (ARMS Length Basis) 1 ®HT wH=TREH amdfes Sfaq T (Group
Endowment Life Insurance Policy) aT9d I8 a9 & 3%,9%,%%8/— &l AT ST TTHT TG G |

TY A qAT TR FEA T FAF GEATTR TASTTH GareTu s & HT

TG U AT G=AT B THITH GaTeled QAT TTIaTqT GATGTI Bl I8 Yfqagel araffe SSeen gargus
I

T AR FLER

7q FEOE AT 2095 /03/9% T TEI ST AT GTETE B IR6T 9 € S ¥,0%,08, 340/~ (A FAS
TR A G a9 g5 99 T=79) F §0 Iqerd (Qo fahar Srax avear 7am £ frdr 97 edue a7 S T e wwe
T AT AR EHIT A A T H T 7S FIHUH LT AT G |

Yegdlq AMUA

ferdio &€, T W THH, AEUH WS Fgiy fdfHds, HET wFOHl TN AEt Sreied HR ., qeee
SO HETATEEE, TTEIT SihEe aa7 qIaTaT Fdiee, 9o R, 3 qur fafaa g, afusdies, Sam
FEER TAT A TSI HRATERATS dvIaTE SO T8 ATeeh avee YT GedNeHT AT AR Tehe TEg; |

T HFIAIT FHATEe (TST, Aefierar a8 Hiod afeadesr qaeT T8 ST af a8 fAeraarer duem ey |
T FHEATD] ATATHT e & o] 9% IURAT g7 WUHN TV ARG HST{HTAEEaTE THIH HAGHT TR

IR WY GeARel X ekl & T & e g | 91, Jefeeare Tadichd G YT & (qeared ard a7
gieEd A7 T ATAN =Mewg |

fafq : 098,00/ 0%



T ATSh T FHT [AfHde I

aifti ufdager 2009/0u8

ey wites
L.S.P. ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

o ghafrerd =T S whraeT

B 57 U SR H (ATHES®l 0% AI9Ie AETIH AINETT T 9w PIRTRT @A
WO A e do AvET A A, o s frarass, sl aiad T frawr qar T
At fawer T y@ < fafa qur orEr sty o srarrive ww @ )

FOlE FraEmTTIE i

4 fafew fraoes & afafaare s aResr freffam S e T dawwr R she
Ty I AT TR T WS A A W 3 | S S
atfored srriter faferr foraor T aifepen, strereansit @ amore TR Afe e @ s e Rrare @
T IR T e arid e gorder avfwn, wmateea 7 wmes T w7 der
WWW@W@@WWWHWW,@WMW
FAATES FHT TS |

dAqriEES! T

mewmmmwmwmmﬁﬁﬁmm
A TS TR Fet fafaeedt Suis fafva fearwee S afufqare s aRw@ e
A TR T AW fafra e e R o qaw e 8 8 e
FGTILE T T |

mmmfﬁﬂmﬁﬁmﬁﬁwWﬁWWawmcooWWW
TRF B | IR A GTAR i Fagvreea swrata swt e 3 87 7 4 st s
hwt fsitae dran seam T dvwe ffa siee @Ety e aer IR TReE 3 9
i T Sfea dorm amd SEahe @ T wem | Serefie SRRt ok @A gElwud
AT T Feaf QT aifaeaen wiomiiar oF e fraoreeat TepiaTE qeree T |

BT T TR A@AAA GHIER FTHT T S THE A T 7 9 e e
FHIAT F e & |

@aTar

TR FHAT FHN NG GERG q9T 96 B Sama gEty eEahE S 1

ATAYABATESHT YT T B |
£4Th :
=]
Q
45500} Jwagal, Kopundole, Lalitpur, Nepal

P.O. Box No. 9222, Kathmandu, Nepal
Tel +977 1 5550424 Web ) vwwlspa.com np

%9



l T ATEH AT AT fAfide

aiftis ufddgol 2009/008

oo, . fr g

L.S.P. Associaftes

HGTIHET FI

(%)  ETHI TR T @A ST G5 T qLT FTHIANS ST TRISUHT GEATH! ATERAT qeora fafaa
foravorgee 4 TATEsS TR FEAT fATHeE®r Q095 TR wETAEr ST atfaare Sy
wiewet frsitam S sear T e fafta sfeaes et e seR aard anfde
AT, AT AAAT TAT 7AE FaATEd wHiEa foraw Ty |

@)  IWE faErvEs € giEfaare s i feiteT S areaam wF dmewr B afiaen
ety free sew aar Rkesr @ |

T

a1 gftdes drar afafaere fafa 2004/% /93 71 S TR Frofta dr saaa T dwer i
Aure forefra gfadeam w1 amenia faefrr faaeor qar o wvendt Py, Joey #r Pr¥e o mw
Setfas FAH ST A REUE g ) qwd A afqdeT @ g ane g g i e
TET TG |

EIEGRES
ot R0w9¥iR3

¥R



T ATSh T FHT [AfHde I

aifti ufdager 2009/0u8

200§ 31M4IG FATedd! dRIGId
HH (%)
w4 faEwor STEE a9 a9 T
|
q =BT gt 93 $¥,0% 0% 40 %¥,0%,0% 340
3 ST q9r F Q¥ 39,%990,¥29 99,2%,43,§9%
3 T F R 88 4959403 80,49,45,293
¥ HeEr-faah strer i &MY, ¥, ¥R RS RLRAL
Y fa atet Srererter =|qor qor rad 9% - -
A = 9,%,5%, ¥4, 9,49,%5,0% % 0%
I
% feer wewll (@w) 9 3,39,30,4%3 9,24,5%,4%¥%
© EreemferT e i 40,2038 0%% 3¥,3%,35, ¥ 0R
S EreepIterT ol R0 395 %95y 3¥5 ¥q,59R
(A FEIAT oAl qAT TTHIER
] T AT TF Hioard i EERERUE I 2%,30,53,519
0 ITET T 15 9%3,4% 49,500 9,%9,23,%5,%5%
99 AT BT R0 39,94 ]WY¥ 394%,32%
R wF g B Y0R% %Y 5¥9 ¥9,53,53,5%%
SET () (R+90+99+93) R,39,4%,23,]43 3,30,33R¥,R9¥
AT AUT AT ASEATER
93 = AT R 3%,R¥,33,95%, ETECEEALIC
9% SAGHT SRaH ST e 3 354,999,955 3,53, ¥5,%53
94 TR & diel aTdl aTad et g R9,35,9%,049 30,823,933
% FEE 3F 3%,35,5%,33@ R%,3§,34,354
SEAT (@) (3+9%+94+9%) 9,]R,%, ¥¥,]3% 9,95,9%,40,3¥4
¢ @F A F (M) = (F) - (@) 9,9%,53,¥5,0%% 9,93,99,¥¥ 5%
95 9@ o1 GHEN g atel fafag @=es ¥ - -

9% TR HTeT fEETEETe | ATaET - R
R0 FA SYUART (§+9+5+99+95+9%) 9,9,5%,¥4,5% 9,49,25,0%,40%

Tafad afrcase T AT § q9T 9% 2@ R THET AT T A |

gwifee arfireae

feraon g I T T
SITHT AT ST g alebl @l - -
ERIEICIIGEE G - -
FTTE AT W] ATEHATE AAF ITT AT T T WA aMcd SR AL - -
frder a1 dHFS awdTe fTEuHn IR - -
a7 ([T gers) - -
FEIAT WIS T T GEIAT qETee aradsl G9Ifad acaes a8 FFaerer anocd S T - -
T - -

HAT S BEEECER G fowet wa ans WA TEEY T e gfaae Tl e,

T FETIAEE TG FEHE AR HETE SEICEa

g, e FAR A
qIHER
Tt uE. Y weitaued

I TAR@ @A = q. aw ST S FH AT

fafa: R009/0v% /33
T FSATS

%3



l T ATEH AT AT fAfide

aiftis ufddgol 2009/008

CAQHSI F5FNGA Ghddiall [ATCS

3NM3fd adf 200Y/E DY GBI clddTel BT

THH ()
8 faEwo A 79 a9 T N
AT
9 9 = fedraaTe Qe AT/ (AeET) © 30,50,99,5\93 3¥,99,%3,29%
R ST el qET AT A R 93,4043, %3 90,53,4%,935
3 orEe fwdl s 9,%9,09,4%5 S¥ SRE¥Y
¥ e ArRT
FEHT AT (F) ¥R, R,5¥3 ¥Y,9%,50,60%
T
Y T @ Y 3,53,45,549 4,20,03,84%
& veEd @w % 9,9%,0\% 9,8%,98%
© SR e @ _F 3,90,000 ?,9% 095
[ I GHER q0 - -
% T N S 9 3,09,09,00% 3,05,04,39%
q0  HHEATY AT el - -
99 HEEI AN FFT RRRR¥,55Y ¥,08,03 30%
93 GHMEINT AT () = (3 — (3) %,9%,39, 9% Y 99,54,09,334
9T) AR 533,98, 097 19,59,5%,9%0
3) WAMHT AR/ (@) 2,90,9,09Y% 345,234
T @ () 9¥,9% 9%,%¥5 39,09,45,300
§Z AR /(FEEE) (1) = (F) - (@) RO,R¥ 94%,9%% R¥,95,33,KOR
93 (%) ST HITHT T AK R,0%,%5,4%0 9,39,59,9c%
(@) AT STASTHT TR 9% - -
¥ wfredr FUET qEEfed @9 - R9,53,3%
Y Afeedr avaTe qICTsT AT/ (A=) 99,¥%,55,¥03 49,0% Bt
SiShigH! ART Jucted THA 33,533,005 93,90,339%=
9% () T F ST 9% (3,90,9%,09%) (J;45,234)
(@) g SISt 9% - -
() farerer ST 9% - -
(%) =T SRrET ¥ - -
(%) Tt ATreT - -
() FFE AT ¥ (899,3%,%00) -
(1) ¥IE ATATT RIF (39,0%,0%%) -
(&) weT-faaht srRreT AES (9,99,9%,9%9) (4,24,54,5%0)
99 FEATTHT AR ATHT/ (FFET) 19,5%,59,%0% 99,¥%,55,%¥03
FTEAT 3, L TAT © 2GR, 1%, 4 T I3F FE AGHT AT AT EA |
A S A aead o= ot yamE ara WA SFEY & Hera gfaaaal STTET,
AT HETTEd g FRET s Ee ) BEIEE
I gE@R@ A 7 a. awd ST, WA FAL A1 ﬁm‘“tgzgiftima
TATAE TAE @qeT qAE e
AEE THGaraq

fafa. R099/0% /33
I: FISATST

9%



T ATSh T FHT [AfHde I

aifti ufdager 2009/0u8

Gt oo e LSS

9I1dUT q, 200Y 3R 3TVIG 39, 200§ JAFAD) ol9IG UdISD! fAaROT

8 faawor

FHFER FAEAFEE WG T8 -
T e AR
AT QTeer TR
QAT FiTeT SR
I YoaeT AT
qeiHaaTe e ATt sl
TARAT e T
AT FHIT TR
Afopal HaeTT ShTA

fer geafaer @fg) &
TLET T FHRH TS T GREHAT AT (JE3) FH
e e ot gearehr weed fgramn e (afg) wd

a9

1,6%,5%,59, ¥4
9,9% 92,994
3%,90,%9500
333,085,309
¥, ¥R, 9% 399
(]3,40,0,99%)
(3¢90,533)
(%,30,4%,0%4)
(35,%3,¥%,080)
(4¥,04,993)
(RO L] SY)
(¥,090330%)
(499%,9,340)
(9,45,49,942)
34823905
(¥,R9]3,¥33)

(2%,05,5\%0)

(4,190,00,000)

THH ()

T T

9,¥8 4% R 5%
?,29,%%,3%%
R9,¥5,%5,20%
1,90,33,0%%
XK}S‘L?QKFO:
(53,%9,93,239)
(1%,40,21Y9)
(¥,¥93% %%%)
(B%,%3,9R,¥\%)
(1%,99R %)
(AR,¥3,4%,R9)
(3,35,4%4,3%R)
(93,30,%%,539)
(4,9%,23,359)
21905 3¥3
q,34,33,%5R

(R¥,R4,3¥R)

(3¥,04,00,000)

e qar fair gearer sw faéaa e (@fy) & ¥,9%,99,95% 3,3R,9%,330
TRl R T (Jfg) (%,¥5,33,034) 3,2%,%9,0%0
e e/ feamara e @fg) #H (%,39,1%,000) (4,00,00,000)
a7 T (3fg) FE (3,35,92,900) -
Tl qAT FET (qTg) FHT (IR,¥3,534) (9,49,5%,03%)
AT YT AT ATRTA (AT 95,03,5%,535 99, %%,5%,2¥3
TR T fefrere ¥3,¥0,0%¥ T%,%%,9¥09
AT AT
TR I SIS AT (AT 903,953 B, Y
I AYTE AR 9,0%,%%,009 34,85,0%Y%
T fafaefiae @8 e @E (@) 9,%,3R,0%1 (3,],¥9,}%¥R)
T fadi Hi| FOERETE TR TEE
RRETE gTed THH - -
foe afeft aradT (afg) /wH - -
HTHIAT AT (AF) /FH - -
H AT ST AT - -
ATHILT TR (RV,045) (%5,4%,5%%)
o »iw FREREE @7 & 54E (1) (RB,045) (%5,2%,5%R)
7Y ! U AfqradiaTe @3 TR JAE = (3)+@)+(M) (RUE,59,¥4%) ¥,39,3% %0¥
TG TAT FHAT WA 9E WoaTd 3%,30,5%,599 0,53,45,3019
TE qAT /AT TEhT Afead Hivd EERERT &VE R&,0,53,519
AW S i aeaw o fomer yame aw WA FEEY TET TR Jiaaera! STaT<AT,
T WETHEA® e FRE Al AT EEIEED
T JE@R@ GH #7 a awmq ST, WA FAL A0 Faqﬁ:;::mw
TATAE TATAE @ qeT gAE R
ALEE THGTEreq

fafd: 099/ 0% /33
W HIEATE

%Y



l T ATEH AT AT fAfide

aiftis ufddgol 2009/008

B20RIIED Lh' B kh
2pyeln
Qs 2hlk Lihe Ay

‘MRl WebBBDIK BHok Bk 23120 Pr R

YRR R2bah 22RBARRY 2o¥a2aR0 22 RARY - wrarb -
%ho's0 0k
(320" %0 'DE)
bae ' 26'bb'b
0%% 2330

%obabiaror
20X RODSBRD BAAMEAR b 2bbRon  R32%eEx - whaax'b

18 Bl 1P ki bRBIKL ke 180

(2) her

oo et T Bvee

beed bl \PhbI-k Rl lble  ISWs ke 1Sk kltbl  2ble Rhysh  1SLs lblp Bble DRUISK /Lt Delb

181h01d bl
gr/80/0008 Bk

lhik 2bi P2k 1S BB B bl B BIBK 12D
ek bbbl Blbkle BRE @bhabKI2h bhlk
lonb BIBK bbby Lah Isk bbb Qs ek
a0’z ooxRabh  3oa'ba'ka’bh  oR:o'R0'x3 Blbalk hbajle
(kbo'%0'0b%) hbk 2lblShs 24 bhky
(320 %00 Lslitll 2k DellbK
oco¥Reabn  (0OoRR:'abe) 2klp Bble Dbl
(b36'26‘bb'b) Lbrlb 1S ite |Bhbl-13k
(0%%'2330'%) &b lhhld hle
®obibaz'ox lhik lkhb bl
Il lithbi] 2bls
el Lplie dihe
I5litlk Dhil 2 Lsliells bl lhdkls bble
el Lplle 2Bls bl
Ush 2kI5 DalK Dhil 2RIy deblioblh
a0’ - tox'22%a'bh  OX:30'RO'RY JENTENT
2ol blielk

102DDJ |39BLR PPN |hdle Lie|PfaDS lie 30/A003 AP MRJIE

ysh 2ol LAY

%%



CAQTS Fo2NZoA BTl [ARTCS

3N adf 200Y/0ug B efbma 3R RN fFaE

T ATSh T FHT [AfHde I

aifti ufddga 2009/008

THH (R.)
¥ faEwon aq a9 T o
E1p
Q  dnTE @E) 90,9,33 3¢, %2,9%,49 5%
R RS FE o R%90,¥9%08  R9,¥5,35,%0%
3 S, S dUT ARIETE AT 9,519,309 Y 5, %%, 9%, ¥ 5%
¥ A YhE A 33,085,359 4,90,33,0%¥%
Y e S YR ITRIT &9 aTdl aTdl aTad et R0,23,6%,359 95,9%,%0,¥ ¥
& e YRl RPN AHATT FIRGH ATId awT 3¥,5%,23,395 3¥,25,%,0%9
ST 9 () 1,%9,29,50,%0% 9,43,R9,¥R,4%%
aqq
T SR (@) LY 2055593 ¥02RQ¥ SN
c  ufwar Fre ¥,39,45,243 ¥ 930,000
& AT FHT o 3%¥90,533 YY, 40,249
o A EF (@) 90,98,33% %2,94,49%
9 qF T T ¥%,54,0%6 33,5Y,99Y
R T g 2355,5%,54% 1990,33,5%3
93 e AT AT TR & alehl aral aTaa e 39,35,9%,04@ 30,23,93 359
¥ ATAF TURT AR ATATA SAGH AT ATET 3,05,59,9%3 3¥ Y98 5H 0
STFAT 20T (E) 9,¥9,99,0%,\93% 9,9%,9R,5%,%99
QY ATHRT A e aRE a=d /(@) = (F) - (@) R0,50,99 593 3¥,99,%3,R9%
AT q 3 & TR AEH A T g |
A TS e aeaw o fomer yee aw A gfaEAT ST,
RIREREPCEE yHE FEFEE A e
I g A i & ST WA FAR AT mm::g:ﬂ%
EEicca EEIEE A AP T, w9 weifue

fafa: 098/0% /33
W FSATST

9¥9



l T ATgh FeATT HHAT (AHdeg

aiftis ufddgol 2009/008

SIS TS SoIAGA bdUoil fHAfIIeShT DRICRIGD

TE HAT:

ASTHITE, HTSHTST, AT
BT ¥ ¥IHRE, W YIEYLE
AT ¥ ¥3U&33

FAS: nigilife@mail.com.np
I www.nationallife.com.np

EiLUR T 090-¥03¥¥5 TR 084-¥0098Y,
fRETR 0Y-¥SE¥Y TAHE 090-4%q8RR TiuTe 0185-¥00%R
faivire ORI-YIONT’ T oYs-§303%0 Teaw 0%N-Y¥3I¥se
R ORY-LIRYY T OXF-4SIYY T® 053450459
AR 0R-¥0009 RGN 0¥5-X¥0¥YY e 0\RQ-YR008Y,
e OR-¥RIIER feeftige YRYRYS T osy-43q530
e OR-UKIENE s 0F-¥RUIRNR T 0%R-4300¥3
ECity 039-43950 FAH 09-¥33¥R%0 et 099-¥30955
$aed 0RY-459309 wrafee 09-¥¥iyoRo FAATE 0195-4390%9
ST ORE-RTARG g 0-¥¥RUYOY AT 0&9-430RKY,
AT 0R-45053 ERkll 099-%%0%s5 Lo 055-Y303
Srgegm 038-430% 50 wieE 099-¥3R¥5¥ ST 058-Y30435
Tl OY-YYY RO Elicic) O¥R-¥GYR REHE 05R-¥30089
L 0AUGLSR AR O-¥YUIR Ffare RE¥EHYOY
FE O -¥YOIRG ARTAATT 09-¥3esy ol "W Q50RY I 0%
grere, fevdw 03%-¥0899 e ORO-%3¥%0q [ 058-5509%%
fepapet 0RS-Y Y0¥ femerelr 0¥8-YR0%R% M EYEIING
AeqH OR&R-¥500¥q RIS OYF-URRIUR T&q 053-43Y0%0
qrereR oR¥-¥0% ¥ T ¥ T 055-%30309
AR 0R¥-¥%0%0% - P " 05R]-¥R0¥3¥
e oftxses ey ofR-XRI0R aw ©
LU RS 0%%-43050% FEH 0R-§3U9YE
AR 0N-Y33MOY LIEININ] 0l95-4R 0%} HTRT 0%0-530300
L 033-45900¥ et OF-¥’} e 0R]3-¥0¥\R
TERTER OYY-YYOY forame ORY-R¥Y T 084-¥0399%
Pt oY3-4QY0R En OR¥-¥3IUN s 0%9-YY40%40
AT O¥E-L9]Y0 qrat 0%9-¥5 BEAR 059-4¥00%q
R OYY-XRYYRY T ORY-YRURRY T 0%9-43¥Y Y
TAPR 0¥9-40%q TS 0%&5-4300%¥ TR 0%%-Y3¥509
e 0¥%-430¥%Y G 0%q-¥%R00Y S 0]Y-YR0YSY
LIt 0¥¥-YY00YR R Y FIIT 0%3-¥9Y
AR REVEYEYR feFrR 0R9-REIR¥R
e 05%-¥¥0Rq T 0R&-¥q0REY
Lk e OR-L¥oRe L 0%6-X¥999%
RGN ¥¥RN TR OGY-¥QNY
R ¥9]R0%¥ e OBR-LYORYG
TR 09-859%349 TR 05R-4ReYUS
aifes 090-¥30%%% L 05G&-¥50¥Y

%5



#Qmmgmﬂ?wm?ﬁfﬂﬁé—gi

aifti ufddga 2009/008

ERAS



l T ATEH T HAT [dAHde

aiftis ufddgol 2009/008

fede

q40



gjLmam

oJoicid fUfdr=Totan
mmm

UcdIdh Y aNufEs 3 S\ §a&ol I s gof




National
Life

www.nationallife.com.np

NATIONAL LIFE MOBILE APP:

nnnnnnnnnnnn # Download on the
>> Google play S App Store




